
BARROW BOROUGH COUNCIL

TOWN HALL
DUKE STREET

BARROW-IN-FURNESS

Wednesday 19th February, 2020

To expedite the business of the meeting, Members are requested to give the 
Executive Director adequate notice of any Amendment which they propose to raise.

To:   The Members of Barrow Borough Council

Mr Mayor, Ladies and Gentlemen

You are hereby summoned to attend a meeting of BARROW BOROUGH COUNCIL to be 

held in the COUNCIL CHAMBER at the TOWN HALL, BARROW on THURSDAY 27TH 

FEBRUARY, 2020 COMMENCING AT 5.30 PM for the transaction of the business 

specified below:

Chief Executive
_______________

Prior to the business of the meeting, Prayers will be offered.

Business

1.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST.

To receive declarations by Members and/or co-optees of interests in respect of 
items on this Agenda. 

Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of Conduct, 
they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests or other 
registrable interests which have not already been declared in the Council’s 
Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal offence not to declare a disclosable 
pecuniary interest either in the Register or at the meeting).

Members may however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and transparency, 
to declare at this point in the meeting, any such disclosable pecuniary interests 
which they have already declared in the Register,  as well as any other registrable 
or other interests.  



2.  MINUTES.

To confirm the Minutes of the Council's proceedings held on 21st January, 2020.

3.  TO RECEIVE APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE.  

4.  ANNOUNCEMENTS.

To receive any announcements from the Chairman, Leader or Head or Paid 
Services.

5.  TO RECEIVE A REPORT FROM THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE AND 
CONSIDER RECOMMENDATIONS CONTAINED THEREIN.  

6.  SETTING THE COUNCIL TAX FOR THE YEAR COMMENCING 1ST APRIL, 
2020.  

7.  TO PASS THE FOLLOWING RESOLUTION, THAT IS TO SAY:

That the Council authorises the fixing of its Common Seal to any documents to 
give effect to the Minutes and proceedings of the Committees submitted to or 
approved by this meeting and any other matters dealt with at this meeting.



BOROUGH OF BARROW-IN-FURNESS

A MEETING OF THE COUNCIL of this Borough was held at the Town Hall, 
Barrow-in-Furness at 5.30 pm. on Tuesday the 21st day of January, 2020 to 
take into consideration and determine upon the following subjects, namely: -

1. - DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST.

2. - MINUTES.

3. - TO RECEIVE APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE.

4. - LIST OF ENGAGEMENTS CARRIED OUT BY THE                            
MAYOR AND DEPUTY MAYOR.

5. - ANNOUNCEMENTS.

6. - QUESTION BY A MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC.

7. - THE COUNCIL PLAN 2020-2024.

8. - PROTOCOL FOR THE AWARD OF THE FREEDOM                           
OF THE BOROUGH.

9. - HEAD OF LEGAL & GOVERNANCE AND                      
MONITORING OFFICER.

10. - (A) TO RECEIVE REPORTS FROM THE                      
FOLLOWING COMMITTEES AND CONSIDER                           
RECOMMENDATIONS:-

(1) Planning
(2) Licensing Regulatory
(3) Licensing
(4) Executive
(5) Audit
(6) Overview and Scrutiny

(B) QUESTIONS TO THE LEADER OF THE          
COUNCIL.

11. - NOTICE OF MOTION UNDER RULE 11.

12. - NOTICE OF MOTION UNDER RULE 11.

13 - TO ORDER THE COMMON SEAL TO BE                          
AFFIXED TO DOCUMENTS.

PRESENT:- Councillor Hamilton (Mayor in the Chair) and Councillors Assouad, 
Barlow, Blezard, Brook, Burns, Burley, Callister, Cassidy, D. Edwards, H. 
Edwards, Gawne, Hall, Husband, McEwan, McLeavy, Maddox, Mooney, 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



Morgan, Pemberton, Preston, Roberts, Robson, Ronson, Seward, Shirley, C. 
Thomson and Wall.

Officers Present:- Sam Plum (Executive Director), Susan Roberts (Director of 
Resources), Debbie Storr (Temporary Senior Legal Officer), Jon Huck 
(Democratic Services Manager and Monitoring Officer), Paula Westwood 
(Democratic Services Officer - Member Support) and Sandra Kemsley 
(Democratic Services Officer).

58 – Minute’s Silence

The Mayor requested Members to stand and observe a minute’s silence as a 
mark of respect for Councillor Rory McClure, former Mayor, who had passed 
away suddenly.

59 – Minutes

The Minutes of the meeting held on 15th October and the extraordinary meeting 
held on 12th November, 2019 were taken as read and confirmed.

60 – Apologies for Absence

Apologies for absence were submitted from Councillors Biggins, Johnston, W. 
McClure, Nott, Pidduck, M. A. Thomson and Worthington.

61 – List of Engagements Carried Out by the Mayor and Deputy Mayor

A list of the engagements carried out by the Mayor and Deputy Mayor between 
16th October, 2019 and 20th January, 2020 had been submitted for information 
and noted.

62 – Announcements

There were no announcements from the Chairman, Leader or Head of Paid 
Service.

63 – Question by the Public

The Mayor advised Members that questions by members of the public did not 
give rise to debate or voting.

Mr Broddie had attended the meeting to ask a question regarding the Council’s 
Discretionary Housing Grant Payment.

The question was as follows:-

“I would like to ask the Council about how information of discretionary 
housing payments, may not be being passed on to council tenants?”

The Deputy Leader of the Council responded by thanking Mr Broddie for his 
question and addressed the concerns raised by him.

Page 4

Agenda Item 2



64 – The Council Plan 2020-2024

The Corporate Support Manager had submitted a report advising that the 
Council Plan had been updated to take into account updates to the Council’s 
priorities to meet the future challenges and opportunities for the Borough.  The 
Council Plan had been developed with input from both Members and Officers, to 
ensure that the Council as a whole understood and strived to achieve the priority 
outcomes.  The final version of the Plan had been tabled at the meeting.

It was moved by Councillor Brook and seconded by Councillor Roberts, and

RESOLVED:-  To endorse the updated Council Plan for the Period 2020-2024.

65 – Protocol for the Award of the Freedom of the Borough

The Chief Executive had submitted a report requesting Members to consider the 
adoption of a protocol for the award of the Freedom of the Borough; a copy of 
which had been appended to the report.

Making an award of the Freedom of the Borough was the highest honour that 
the Council could bestow in recognition of excellence and achievement.  It had 
been noted that whilst there had been a number of Honorary Freedoms given by 
the Borough, the Council did not currently have a protocol governing the way in 
which the Council makes such awards.

It was moved by Councillor Brook and seconded by Councillor Callister, and

RESOLVED:-  To adopt the protocol for the award of the Freedom of the 
Borough.

66 – Head of Legal & Governance and Monitoring Officer

The Director of Resources had submitted a report proposing the creation of a 
new post of Head of Legal & Governance and for the post to be designated as 
the Council’s statutory Monitoring Officer, in order to strengthen the Council’s 
core governance arrangements.

It was moved by Councillor Brook and seconded by Councillor Callister, and

RESOLVED:-  (i)  To approve the creation of a new post, Head of Legal & 
Governance;

(ii)  To designate the Head of Legal & Governance as the Council’s Monitoring 
Officer with effect from the date the post is filled; and

(iii)  That a Recruitment Panel be appointed, as a Sub-Committee of the 
Executive Committee, in the proportion of 3:1, including the Leader of the 
Council, plus the addition of the Chief Executive as an equal and voting 
member.

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



REPORTS OF COMMITTEES

67 – Planning

It was moved by Councillor C. Thomson, and

RESOLVED:- That the reports of the meetings of the Planning Committee held 
on 29th October, 26th November and 17th December, 2019 and 14th January, 
2020 be received.

68 – Licensing Regulatory

It was moved by Councillor Callister, and 

RESOLVED:- That the reports of the meeting of the Licensing Regulatory 
Committee held on 7th November and the special meeting held on 18th 
December, 2019 be received.

69 – Licensing

It was moved by Councillor Callister, and 

RESOLVED:- (i) That the report of the meeting of the Licensing Committee held 
on 7th November, 2019 be received; and

(ii) To note that the meeting of the Licensing Committee scheduled for 5th 
December, 2019 had been cancelled.

70 – Executive

Councillor Brook advised that the report of the meeting of the Executive 
Committee held on 23rd October, 2019 had been reported to the Extraordinary 
Council meeting on 12th November, 2019.

It was moved by Councillor Brook and seconded by Councillor Roberts that the 
reports of the meeting of the Executive Committee held on 27th November, 
2019 and the addendum of the meeting held on 15th January, 2020 be received 
and that each of the recommendations contained therein be adopted.

RESOLVED:- That the reports of the meetings of the Executive Committee held 
on 27th November, 2019 and the addendum of the meeting held on 15th 
January, 2020 be received and that each of the recommendations contained 
therein be adopted, as follows:-

1. Housing Management Forum: Recommendations:
Asset Management Strategy 2020-2025

Page 6

Agenda Item 2



RESOLVED:- 

(i) To agree the content of the Housing Department’s 2020-2025 Asset 
Management Strategy;

(ii) To agree to prioritise future investments to housing related assets based 
on the results of the sustainability scoring matrix; and

(iii) To agree that Officers would produce a new five-year Asset Management 
Investment Plan for each of the Council’s five housing management areas 
for Members’ consideration at their meeting to be held on 16th January, 
2020.

2. The Council Plan 2020-2024 (Minute No. 64)

RESOLVED:- To endorse the updated Council Plan for the period 2020-2024.

3. Protocol for the Award of the Freedom of the Borough (Minute No. 65)

RESOLVED:- To adopt the protocol for the award of the Freedom of the 
Borough.

4. Public Protection Services – Enforcement Policies

RESOLVED:- To approve the General Enforcement Policy for Public Protection 
Services and the specific Enforcement Policies for the work areas of Food 
Safety and Health and Safety.

5. Elected Members Code of Conduct – Licensing Matters

RESOLVED:- To approve the Licensing Code of Conduct and adopt it into Part 
5 of the Constitution.

71 – Audit 

It was moved by Councillor Burns, and

RESOLVED:- That the report of the meeting of the Audit Committee held on 
18th December, 2019 be received.

72 – Overview and Scrutiny

It was moved by Councillor McLeavy, and 

RESOLVED:- That the reports of the meetings of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee held on 24th October and 28th November, 2019 be received.

73 – Questions to the Leader of the Council

There had been no questions submitted to the Leader of the Council under 
notice as required by Standing Order 10.2 and 10.4.

Page 7

Agenda Item 2



The Deputy Leader of the Council took the following questions without notice 
from the Mayor which were relevant to the business of the meeting:-

1. The Mayor referred to Minute No. 54 of the Executive Committee held on 
23rd October, 2019 (Low Carbon Barrow) and asked the Deputy Leader to 
write to the Director of Stagecoach to ascertain why Barrow received 
second rate buses.

2. The Mayor referred to Minute No. 65 of the Executive Committee held on 
27th November, 2019 (Housing Management Forum Recommendations - 
Asset Management Strategy 2020-2025) and asked the Deputy Leader to 
request an urgent meeting with the new MP, Simon Fell, to voice the 
Borough’s concerns regarding the implications of the introduction of 
Universal Credit and the subsequent number of Council Tenants that had 
ended up with housing rent arrears before the situation escalated further.

The Deputy Leader responded to the above questions.

74 – Notice of Motion under Rule 11

The following motion had been signed by Councillors Brook and M. A. Thomson 
and had been provided to the Council with Notice under Rule 11:-

That this Council will support and sign the Cooperative Party Charter 
Against Modern Slavery and it will promote awareness of Modern Day 
Slavery amongst our residents and work with Officers to support survivors, 
as follows:

"Charter Against Modern Slavery

Barrow-in-Furness Borough Council will:

1. Train its corporate procurement team to understand modern slavery 
through the Chartered Institute of Procurement and Supply’s (CIPS) 
online course on Ethical Procurement and Supply.

2. Require its contractors to comply fully with the Modern Slavery Act 
2015, wherever it applies, with contract termination as a potential 
sanction for noncompliance.

3. Challenge any abnormally low-cost tenders to ensure they do not rely 
upon the potential contractor practising modern slavery.

4. Highlight to its suppliers that contracted workers are free to join a trade 
union and are not to be treated unfairly for belonging to one.

5. Publicise its whistle-blowing system for staff to blow the whistle on any 
suspected examples of modern slavery.

6. Require its tendered contractors to adopt a whistle-blowing policy which 
enables their staff to blow the whistle on any suspected examples of 
modern slavery.

7. Review its contractual spending regularly to identify any potential 
issues with modern slavery.

Page 8

Agenda Item 2



8. Highlight for its suppliers any risks identified concerning modern slavery   
and refer them to the relevant agencies to be addressed.

9. Refer for investigation via the National Crime Agency’s national referral 
mechanism any of its contractors identified as a cause for concern 
regarding modern slavery.

10.Report publicly on the implementation of this policy annually."

The motion had been duly seconded by Councillor Roberts, a vote was taken on 
the motion and it was,

RESOLVED:- To unanimously agree to support the motion.

75 – Notice of Motion under Rule 11

The following motion had been signed by Councillors Mooney and Preston and 
had been provided to the Council with Notice under Rule 11:-

Council expresses alarm at the rise in antisemitism in recent years across 
the UK. This includes incidents when criticism of Israel has been 
expressed using antisemitic tropes. Criticism of Israel can be legitimate, 
but not if it employs the tropes and imagery of antisemitism.

We therefore welcome the UK Government’s support of the internationally 
recognised International Holocaust Remembrance Alliance (IHRA) 
guidelines on antisemitism which define antisemitism thus: 

‘Antisemitism is a certain perception of Jews, which may be expressed as 
hatred toward Jews. Rhetorical and physical manifestations of antisemitism 
are directed toward Jewish or non-Jewish individuals and/or their property, 
toward Jewish community institutions and religious facilities.’ 

The guidelines highlight manifestations of antisemitism as including:

  ‘Calling for, aiding, or justifying the killing or harming of Jews in the name 
of a radical ideology or an extremist view of religion. 

 Making mendacious, dehumanizing, demonizing, or stereotypical 
allegations about Jews as such or the power of Jews as collective — 
such as, especially but not exclusively, the myth about a world Jewish 
conspiracy or of Jews controlling the media, economy, government or 
other societal institutions. 

  Accusing Jews as a people of being responsible for real or imagined 
wrongdoing committed by a single Jewish person or group, or even for 
acts committed by non-Jews. 

 Denying the fact, scope, mechanisms (e.g. gas chambers) or 
intentionality of the genocide of the Jewish people at the hands of 
National Socialist Germany and its supporters and accomplices during 
World War II (the Holocaust). 

Page 9

Agenda Item 2



  Accusing the Jews as a people, or Israel as a state, of inventing or 
exaggerating the Holocaust. 

  Accusing Jewish citizens of being more loyal to Israel, or to the alleged 
priorities of Jews worldwide, than to the interests of their own nations. 

 Denying the Jewish people their right to self-determination, e.g., by 
claiming that the existence of a State of Israel is a racist endeavour. 

  Applying double standards by requiring of it behaviour not expected or 
demanded of any other democratic nation. 

  Using the symbols and images associated with classic antisemitism 
(e.g., claims of Jews killing Jesus or blood libel) to characterize Israel or 
Israelis. 

  Drawing comparisons of contemporary Israeli policy to that of the Nazis. 

  Holding Jews collectively responsible for actions of the state of Israel.’ 

Council welcomes the cross-party support within the Council for combating 
antisemitism in all its manifestations. Council hereby adopts the above 
definition of antisemitism as set out by the International Holocaust 
Remembrance Alliance and pledges to combat this pernicious form of 
racism.”

The motion had been duly seconded by Councillor Preston, a vote was taken on 
the motion and it was,

RESOLVED:- To unanimously agree to support the motion.

76 – Common Seal

RESOLVED:- That the Council authorises the affixing of its Common Seal to any 
documents to give effect to the Minutes and proceedings of the Committees 
submitted to or approved by this meeting and any other matters dealt with at this 
meeting.

The meeting closed at 6.39 pm.

Page 10

Agenda Item 2



COUNCIL

Date of Meeting: 27th February, 2020

Reporting Officer:       Chief Executive

REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The following recommendations are submitted for consideration by the Council:-

Executive Committee – 5th February, 2020

1.0 Five Year Estate Based Asset Management Plans 2020-2025

1.1 The purpose of the attached report was to agree the content of the Five-Year 
Asset Management Plan for each of the Council’s five housing estates.  Each 
Plan contained investment proposals for the period 2020 to 2025.  The 
investment proposals had been based on the findings of the 2019 Stock 
Condition Survey.

1.2 Recommendations:-

To recommend the Council:-

1. To endorse the sustainability model scoring outcomes and where 
appropriate prevent unsustainable investment to properties classified as 
‘difficult to let’;

2. To agree the content of the 2020-2025 Asset Management Plans – a copy 
of which had been placed in the Members’ Room; 

3. To agree with the continuing delivery of these work streams via the 
Procure Plus Framework; and

4. To agree that a work group be established to look further into the super 
output areas for the Central estate.

2.0 Housing Revenue Account 2020/2021

2.1 The purpose of the attached report was to agree a Housing Revenue Account 
Budget for the 2020/2021 financial year and to provide details of the Expected 
Outturn Budget and balance for the current year.

2.2 Recommendations:-

1. To note the information provided within the report;

Page 11

Agenda Item 5



2. To note the Expected Outturn Budget for 2019/2020 would be a surplus 
of £165,390 after the budgeted contribution to Earmarked Reserves of 
£379,720;

3. To note the balances on the Expected Outturn Budget for 2019/2020;

4. To agree the basis on which the 2020/2021 draft Budget had been 
proposed in points 3.1 to 3.3 of the report;

5. To agree dwelling rent increase of 2.7% outlined in point 4 of the report;

6. To agree garage rent increase of 2.7% outlined in point 5 of the report;

7. To agree or note as outlined in points 6.1, 6.2, 6.3 and 6.4 of the report, 
other additional considerations; and

8. To agree the approach to matters raised in points 7.1, 7.2, 7.3 and 7.4 of 
the report.

3.0 Budget Proposals 2020-2021

3.1 The Committee considered a detailed report (attached) from the Director of 
Resources regarding the budget proposals for 2020-2021 and the decisions 
associated with budget setting. The report contained matters relating to the 
General Fund Revenue Account. The Capital Programme, Treasury 
Management and financial reserves; also the Pay Policy for 2020-2021.

3.2 Recommendations:- 

To recommend the Council:-

1. To set the 2020-2021 General Fund revenue budget as £10,088,720 
including £148,080 for parish precepts, an increase of £5 on Band D 
which is equivalent to 2.12% on all Council Tax bands and including 
the use of £440,190 of earmarked reserves and the addition of £1,023,630 
to reserves for business rate and pension fund volatility; a net addition 
to reserves of £583,440;

2. To agree 2.5% increase for non-delegated fees and charges;

3. To approve the Pay Policy for 2020-2021;

4. To agree that the benefit from the Cumbria Business Rate Pool be added 
to earmarked reserves;

5. To approve the Capital Strategy for 2020-2021 and the Capital 
Programme for 2019-2023;

Page 12

Agenda Item 5



6. To approve the Treasury Management Strategy Statement and the 
Authorised Limit for borrowing of £55m for 2020-2021;

7. To approve the Medium Term Financial Plan for 2020-2024; and

8. To approve the Reserves and Balances Policy for 2020-2021.

Background Papers

Nil.

Page 13

Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank



            Part One

HOUSING MANAGEMENT FORUM

Date of Meeting: 16th January 2020

Reporting Officer: Janice Sharp
 Assistant Director-Housing    

(R)

Title:  Five-year Estate-Based Asset Management Plans     
2020-2025

Summary and Conclusions: 

The purpose of this report is to agree the content of the Five-year Asset 
Management Plan for each of the Council’s five housing estates.  Each plan 
contains investment proposals for the period 2020 to 2025.  The investment 
proposals are based on the findings of the 2019 Stock Condition Survey. 

Recommendations: 

Members are requested to:

1. Endorse the sustainability model scoring outcomes and where appropriate 
prevent unsustainable investment to properties classified as “difficult to 
let”;

2. Agree the content of the 2020-2025 Asset Management Plans - a copy of 
which has been placed in the Members’ Room; and

3. Agree with the continuing delivery of these work streams via the Procure 
Plus framework.

Report

The purpose of this report is to agree the content of the Five-year Asset 
Management Plan for each of the Council’s five housing estates.  Each plan 
contains investment proposals for the period 2020 to 2025.  The investment 
proposals are based on the findings of the 2019 Stock Condition Survey.

The principles adopted in the 2020-2025 Asset Management Plans continue 
with the priorities set out in the 2020-2025 Asset Management Strategy and 
seek to ensure:

 The Council maintains the Decent Homes Standards;

 The aspirations of Tenants are considered and incorporated within the 
Programme;

Page 15

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 1



 Collaborative working with other housing providers and Contractors to 
improve delivery of planned and responsive repair services; 

 Properties are safe, energy efficient and weatherproof;

 Investments are prioritised on a ‘just-in-time’ and ‘worst –first’ basis; and

 Investments are reviewed in conjunction with the sustainability model 
results shown in the 2020-2025 Asset Management Strategy.

Five-year Estate Based Asset Management Plans

The 2019 Stock Condition Survey indicates planned maintenance costs over 
a 30-year business planning period are estimated to be around £84,857,759. 
This equates to an average of £31,805 per property. 

Whilst the survey contains investment over a 30-year period (long-term 
investments), this report focuses on a range of short-term major work 
investments which need to be delivered over the next five years to ensure 
properties remain “safe, energy efficient and waterproof”. 

These investments will be delivered on a “just in time” and “worst first” basis.

The 2020-2025 Asset Management Plans contain detailed five-year 
investment plans for Ormsgill, Walney, Dalton, Central and Roosegate 
housing estates. Each plan contains information about the estate, its 
amenities, tenure types and the likelihood of the estate remaining sustainable 
over the next five years.

The sustainability review included assessment of wider social and economic 
factors (National Deprivation Indices) to help us better understand and predict 
sustainability and includes indices for crime, barriers to housing service, 
income, health and education. The review also contained an assessment of 
local factors relating to rent arears, void levels and maintenance expenditure.

The model contains one of four possible outcomes:

Properties scoring 80%-100% Will be classed as ‘Sustainable and 
Popular’ and have a Green Light for 
investment.

Properties scoring 65%-79% Will be classed as ‘Sustainable but Less 
Popular’ and have a Green Light for 
investment.

Properties scoring 35%-64% Will be classed as ‘Sustainable with 
Specific Problems and will have an Orange 
Light for investment caution.

Page 16

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 1



Properties scoring 1%-34% Will be classed as ‘Difficult to let’ and have 
a Red Light to prevent unsustainable 
investment

Members are asked to endorse the sustainability model scoring outcomes and 
where appropriate prevent unsustainable investment to properties classified 
as “Difficult to let”.

The following sustainability scores were identified for each estate;

Central 50 Sustainable with specific problems
Dalton 91 Sustainable and popular
Ormsgill 58 Sustainable with specific problems
Roosegate 71 Sustainable but less popular
Walney 89 Sustainable and popular 

Five-year Investment Priorities

The 2019 Stock Condition Survey identified the following key areas of 
investment between 2020 and 2025:

 Replacing existing PVCu windows which are approaching the end of their 
component life;

 Upgrading old heating boilers and heating systems which are approaching 
the end of their component life;

 Upgrading old domestic power and lighting systems which are 
approaching the end of their component life;

 Replacing main roof coverings which are approaching the end of their 
component life;

 Replacing flat roof coverings which are approaching the end of their 
component life;

 Replacing external wall finishes which are approaching the end of their 
component life;

 Replacing concrete lintels, concrete window sills and chimney stacks 
which are approaching the end of their component life;

 Testing and certifying all gas appliances annually;
 Testing and certifying all electrical installations on a five-year cycle;
 Painting and repairing timber components on a six-year cycle;
 Upgrading communal lighting with energy efficient bulbs or fittings;
 Upgrading security doors to communal areas; and
 Undertaking roofing and damp improvements to 10 blocks of garages 

annually.

Page 17

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 1



(i) Legal Implications

Underlying contracts and GDPR Contracts for all work streams delivered via 
Procure Plus are already in place. 

(ii) Risk Assessment

The recommendation requires officers to ensure contractors risk assessments 
and method statements continue to be suitable and sufficient for the work to 
be undertaken.

There are potential risks from possible litigation in the form of disrepair claims 
should the planned improvements not be completed within the specified time 
frames. 

(iii) Financial Implications

The recommendation has significant financial implications outlined in the body 
of the report and contained in the 2020-2025 Asset Management Plans – a 
copy of which has been placed in the Members’ Room for information and 
reference.

(iv) Health and Safety Implications

The recommendation has implications with regard to health and safety.

(v) Equality and Diversity

The recommendation has no detrimental impact on service users showing any 
of the protected characteristics under current Equalities legislation.

(vi) Health and Well-being Implications

The recommendation has no adverse effect on the Health and Wellbeing of 
users of this service.

Background Papers

Nil

Page 18

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 1



             Part One

HOUSING MANAGEMENT FORUM

Date of Meeting: 16th January 2020

Reporting Officer: Janice Sharp
 Assistant Director-Housing    

(R)

Title:  Housing Revenue Account 2020/21

Summary and Conclusions: 

The purpose of the Report is to agree a Housing Revenue Account Budget for 
the 2020/21 financial year and provide the Expected Outturn Budget and 
balance for the current year.

Recommendations: 

Members are asked to:

1)  Note the information provided through the Report;

2)  Note the Expected Outturn Budget for 2019/20 is a surplus of £165,390 
     after the budgeted contribution to Earmarked Reserves of £379,720;

3)  Note the balances on the Expected Outturn Budget for 2019/20;

4)  Agree the basis on which the 2020/21 draft Budget is proposed in 3.1 to 
3.3;

5) Agree dwelling rent increase of 2.7% outlined in 4;

6)  Agree garage rent increase of 2.7% outlined in 5;

7)  Agree or note as outlined in 6.1, 6.2, 6.3 and 6.4 other additional 
considerations; and

8)   Agree the approach to matters raised in 7.1, 7.2, 7.3 and 7.4.

Background

Several significant factors have to be considered when drafting a HRA budget 
– one of which is the four-year period of a reduction in income due to the 
Government’s social rents policy to decrease rents by 1% which ends in 
March, 2020.  

Page 19

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 2



The Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government in setting out 
their rent policy for social housing from April, 2020 permit social rents being 
increased by CPI plus 1% for 2020/21; this means an increase of 2.7%.

This is relatively good news, however, another significant factor is the 
continuation of Right to Buy which saw an estimated loss in rental income of 
over £37,000 for 2019/20. 

Consequently, the rent income will remain challenged with the sale of Council 
properties through Right to Buy, the roll out of Universal Credit, increasing 
costs and inflation generally.

As such, the Council needs to remain focused on controlling expenditure to 
ensure there is sufficient provision to maintain the stock, provide services 
which meet tenants’ aspirations and takes into account the reducing numbers 
of dwellings. 

1. Expected Outturn Budget 2019/20

The outturn for the year forecasts a net surplus of £165,390 after the 
budgeted contribution to Earmarked Reserves of £379,720.

2. Balance on the Expected Outturn for 2019/20

The above is likely to result in the following movement in balances.

2.1 Major Repair Reserve balance as at 31 March 2019             £2,510,440

All Capital Schemes are on target for year-end and therefore no change 
is expected to the above reserve.

2.2   i)   Housing Revenue Earmarked Reserve at 31 March 2019 £2,241,235

        Budgeted Contribution to Reserve in year                     £   379,720

Forecast surplus                                                             £   165,390

               Estimated Balance at year end                                     £2,786,345

ii)   Housing Fund balance at 31 March 2019                         £1,000,000

               There is no change expected in the fund balance in year.

2.3   Voluntary Repayment Provision as at 31 March 2019  £ 7,319,050

Forecast Provision 2019/20 £ 816,520

Provision at year end £8,135,570

Loans repaid to 31 March 2019 £2,000,000

Loan maturing 2019/20 £1,000,000

Page 20

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 2



3. HRA Budget 2020/21 Proposal

In proposing the budget for 2020/21 - attached at Appendix 1, the 
following factors have been taken into account:

3.1 An increase of rental income by CPI plus 1%: In total 2.7% increase for 
residential dwellings. 

3.2 A contingency of £50k has been retained in the proposed budget which is 
referred to below. 

3.3 Bad debt provision increased by £123,290 over the £168,920 calculated 
budget for 2019/20.    

4.  Dwelling Rents

4.1   In 2019/20, there were 53 weeks for which rent was due to be charged in 
the financial year.  As a result it was necessary to increase dwelling rents 
by 0.9% over the 48 collectable weeks to account for this.  This increase 
ensured Tenants were charged for the 53 weeks but also took into 
account the 1% decrease introduced by the Welfare Reform Act (2016). 
The effect this had on dwelling rents can be seen below.

52 Weeks 53 Weeks 48 Weeks
2017/18 £75.23 £81.50
2018/19 £74.41 £80.61
2019/20 £73.67 £81.34

Average rent 
increase over 48 
weeks = 0.73p per 
week

In order to ensure rents for 2020/21 were calculated fairly, it was 
necessary to revert the rent back to what it would have been based on a 
52 week year with the 1% decrease applied as per the final year of the 
old rent policy. Once the baseline rent was calculated, the permitted 
increase of CPI (1.7% as at September 2019) + 1% could be applied. 
This proposes a rent model which sees an increase of 2.7% to the 
baseline rents.

The proposed dwelling rents for 2020/21 (based on an average) are 
shown below:

52 Weeks 53 Weeks 48 Weeks

2018/19 £74.41 £80.61

2019/20 £73.67 £81.34

2020/21 £75.76 £82.07

2021/22 CPI + 1%

Average rent 
increase over 48 
weeks = 0.73p per 
week

Page 21

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 2



4.2 The expenditure within the HRA is agreed through the democratic 
process, however, occasions arise which result in under and overspends 
with the account.

As agreed in the 2019/20 budget report the use of the earmarked HRA 
reserve manages budget volatility as and when required within the 
parameter of the overall agreed budget.  £105,720 has been added for 
2020/21.

The HRA fund balance will be assessed by the Director of Resources.

5. Garage Charges

The Council has discretion to set the appropriate rent for garages.  The 
reduction in social rents did not apply to garage rents and whilst this 
policy has been in place, garage rents were increased by 2% each year. 
2019/20 had 53 chargeable periods and garage rents were increased by 
2% in order to ensure we collected the ‘extra weeks’ rent. It was decided 
not to increase the rents any further for the 2019/20 year.

2020/21 is a normal 52 week financial year. It is proposed that garage 
rents are increased in line with dwelling rents for the 2020/21 financial 
year meaning an increase of 2.7%.  We propose to adopt this approach 
each year of the ‘new rent policy’ with garage rents being increased by 
CPI + 1% in the same way as dwelling rents. 

Increasing the rents each year has not had an adverse effect on voids or 
in re-letting garages.  The 2019/20 financial year has seen 52 new 
applications for garages, which is only 7 less compared to the same 
period last year.

The proposed garage rents for 2020/21 are shown below:

No 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21
Increased 
Revenue 
2020/21

Garage rate 1 27 £7.24 £7.38 £7.58

Garage rate 2 451 £9.99 £10.19 £10.46

TOTAL 478 £225,646 £230,157 £236,150

£5,993

6. Additional considerations

6.1 Service charges eg communal area cleaning

Agree Officers increase charges as necessary to reflect any increases in 
contractual arrangements for the delivery of the service.  Charges to be 
adjusted as and when necessary to reflect recovery of the cost of 
provision with no additional administrative costs.

Page 22

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 2



6.2 Service & Facility Charges for Dispersed & Furnished Properties

The future funding of service charges has now been agreed and it will be 
exempt from Universal Credit and the charges can continue to be 
claimed by housing benefit.

6.3 Leasehold Policy and Recharging Framework

It is the Council’s intention to introduce a Leasehold Policy in 2020/21, 
which will include a recharge framework for leaseholders to assist in the 
recovery of service charges and costs for qualifying works so as to 
ensure the Council recovers monies due efficiently and in a timely 
manner.  Fees to cover Officers’ time administering re-sale enquiries and 
other applicable functions will also form part of the framework to ensure 
the Council are recovering any costs associated with leaseholders that 
they are entitled to. 

6.4 Adelphi Court 

The block of 12 flats is leased to Richmond Fellowship as a supported 
housing scheme, and the four-year lease expires in March, 2020.  

A report is being presented to this meeting requesting Members agree to 
extend the lease until 31st July, 2020, with Richmond Fellowship paying 
the annual rent pro rata until then.  Richmond Fellowship is unable to 
commit to signing a new lease in March until they have confirmation they 
will be awarded a new contract from Cumbria County Council to 
commence July, 2020.  The tender process commences March, 2020.  

Should Richmond Fellowship be awarded the contract, a report will be 
put to HMF for agreement for a new lease to be drawn up between 
Richmond Fellowship and the Council for the duration of the contract with 
Cumbria County Council. 

It is proposed that in agreeing a new lease, the current rent will be 
increased by 2.7% in line with dwelling rents, which would be £41,983.76 
per annum. 

7. Priorities for the Year   

During the financial year there are several factors which will have an 
impact on the service.  To summarise:

7.1 Maintain a balanced Housing Revenue Account
From April, 2020, the Government has agreed that at the end of the 
current social rents policy, they will allow social landlords to increase 
their rents by CPI plus 1% in 2020/21 financial year.

Page 23

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 2



This is positive news, however, the number of properties continues to 
reduce requiring the need for continuous financial control and 
consideration of the future models of service delivery. 

7.2 Housing Management System (Cx)

Significant progress has been made with Cx in 2019/20.  A large number 
of the issues experienced post go-live have been resolved following a 
successful upgrade to 18.8.9.  Rent review (year-end) was successful 
and the day-to-day operation of the system has improved considerably. 

2020/21 will see the introduction of Tenant Hub, the new self-serve portal 
for Tenants and also the ability for us to return to sending twice-yearly 
rent statements.

A further upgrade will be scheduled for 2020/21 to further improve the 
functionality of Cx and the user interface.

7.3 Welfare Change

The full service roll out of Universal Credit commenced December, 2018.  
Members will be aware of the change this has introduced and the 
significant affect on our rental income.

It is evident it continues to be a significant risk to the rental income we 
receive and the pressure it puts on the Operations Team to mitigate the 
affect to maximise our income; rent collection will be a key priority for 
staff.

Actions to note:  

 Operations Team to adopt best practice to minimise the risk to the 
income of the service.

 Following a review of the impact on staff workload due to Universal 
Credit, another member of staff is to be recruited; there is provision in 
the 2020/21 budget.

The Bad Debt Provision has increased by £123,290 over the £168,920 
calculated budget from the previous year.  

7.4 Water Rates Collection

The current contract to collect water charges with United Utilities was due 
to end March, 2019.  It was agreed at HMF on 13th September, 2018 the 
contract be extended a further two years (March 2021) to assist with the 
maintenance of the HRA.

The commission the service will receive is c.£193,200 and it is envisaged 
the Council will receive a similar amount in 2021/22.  United Utilities is 
unable to confirm the amount as yet.

Page 24

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 2



Summary 

The proposed budget provides assurance that the Council remains focused on 
controlling expenditure to ensure there is sufficient income to maintain the 
stock, provide services our Tenants aspire to and allows for the reduced 
number of dwellings through Right to Buy. 

The use of earmarked HRA reserves gives provision for flexibility in the service 
as well as ensuring a balanced budget over the next financial year 2020/21 
should additional reductions or efficiencies not be identified.

(i) Legal Implications

Statutory requirements as to the keeping of the Housing Revenue Account are 
contained in the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 which include a 
duty under s.76 to budget to prevent a debit balance on the HRA and to 
implement and review the budget.

(ii) Risk Assessment

There is a risk that the underlying budget estimates and assumptions are 
insufficient; this is mitigated as far as possible through the budget setting 
process and the best possible estimates are used, supported by financial 
reserves.

(iii) Financial Implications

The recommendation has financial implications as detailed within the report.

(iv) Health and Safety Implications

The recommendation has no implications.

(v) Equality and Diversity

The recommendation has no detrimental impact on service users showing any 
of the protected characteristics under current Equalities legislation. For those 
service users accessing welfare benefits due to a protected characteristic, the 
increases in rent will be covered by the DWP and support will be provided to 
update journals with the new Housing costs.

(vi) Health and Well-being Implications

The recommendation has no adverse effect on the Health and Wellbeing of 
users of this service.

Background Papers

Nil

Page 25

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 2



This page is intentionally left blank



Housing Revenue Account
Budget 2020-2021

Actual Base Budget Revised
Budget

Base Budget

2018-2019 2019-2020 2019-2020 2020-21

Expenditure

Repairs and maintenance 3,082,299 3,078,920 3,078,920 3,189,150 

Supervision and management 3,218,913 3,415,390 3,455,610 3,493,880

Rents, rates, taxes and other charges 6,303 7,460 11,460 12,500 

Depreciation and impairment of dwellings 1,502,731 1,896,060 1,896,060 1,916,890 

Depreciation and impairment of non-dwelling assets 248,213 175,050 175,050 175,620 

Debt management costs 12,399 12,280 12,280 12,100 

Movement in the allowance for bad debts 137,183 168,920 168,920 292,210 

Total Expenditure 8,208,042 8,754,080 8,798,300 9,092,350 

Income

Dwelling rents (9,843,049) (9,643,970) (9,643,050) (9,713,950) 

Non-dwelling rents (387,384) (400,880) (400,880) (416,790) 

Charges for services and facilities (1,346,423) (1,310,820) (1,521,350) (1,053,020) 

Total Income (11,576,856) (11,355,670) (11,565,280) (11,183,760) 

Net Total (3,368,814) (2,601,590) (2,766,980) (2,091,410) 

HRA services’ share of Corporate and Democratic Core 230,087 197,670 197,670 248,430 

HRA share of other Non Distributed Costs (813) (820) (820) (60) 

Net (Income)/Expenditure for HRA Services (3,139,540) (2,404,740) (2,570,130) (1,843,040) 

HRA share of operating income and expenditure:

Gain or (loss) on sale of HRA non-current assets (103,829) 

Interest payable and similar charges 918,434 934,300 934,300 901,780 

Pensions interest cost and expected return on pension assets 151,753 179,400 179,400 133,100 

(Surplus) or deficit for the year on HRA services (2,173,182) (1,291,040) (1,456,430) (808,160) 

Adjustments between accounting basis & funding basis under regulations

Reversal of depreciation and impairment of non-current assets

Reversal of revaluation losses on Property, Plant and Equipment (112,878) 

Reversal of derecognition of non current assets (72,967) 

Add the voluntary provision for the financing of capital investment 816,520 816,520 816,520 816,520 

Transfer of cash sale proceeds credited as part of the gain/loss on disposal 610,142 

Debt rescheduling premium and discounts released 0 

Reversal of technical items relating to retirement benefits (304,928) (179,400) (179,400) (133,100) 

Employer’s pension costs 268,880 274,200 274,200 19,020 

Capital expenditure funded by the HRA 0 

Contribution to Earmarked reserves 966,515 379,720 598,060 105,720

Contribution from Earmarked reserves - - - 52,950

Reversal of accumulated absences charges 1,898 

Total Adjustments 2,173,182 1,291,040 1,456,430 808,160 

(Surplus)/Deficit for the Year (0) 0 0 (0) 

Page 27

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 3



This page is intentionally left blank



  Part One

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting:  5th February, 2020

Reporting Officer:  Director of Resources   

(R)

Title: Budget Proposals 2020-2021

Summary and Conclusions: 

This report sets out the budget proposals for 2020-2021 and the decisions 
associated with budget setting.  The report contains matters relating to the 
General Fund revenue account, the Capital Programme, Treasury 
Management and financial reserves; also the Pay Policy for 2020-2021.

Recommendations: 

To recommend the Council:

1. To set the 2020-2021 General Fund revenue budget as £10,088,720 
including £148,080 for parish precepts, an increase of £5 on Band D 
which is equivalent to 2.12% on all Council Tax bands and including 
the use of £440,190 of earmarked reserves and the addition of 
£1,023,630 to reserves for business rate and pension fund volatility; a 
net addition to reserves of £583,440;

2. To agree 2.5% increase for non-delegated fees and charges;

3. To approve the Pay Policy for 2020-2021;

4. To agree that the benefit from the Cumbria Business Rate Pool is    
added to earmarked reserves;

5. To approve the Capital Strategy for 2020-2021 and the Capital 
Programme for 2019-2023;

6. To approve the Treasury Management Strategy Statement and the 
Authorised Limit for borrowing of £55m for 2020-2021;

7. To approve the Medium Term Financial Plan for 2020-2024; and

8. To approve the Reserves and Balances Policy for 2020-2021;

Page 29

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 4



Report

A. Executive Summary

The 2020-2021 General Fund revenue budget is proposed as £10.1m 
including the use of £0.4m of earmarked reserves and the addition of £1m to 
reserves for business rate and pension fund volatility; a net addition to 
reserves of £0.6m.  The £10.1m budget includes £148k for parish precepts.

Council Tax is proposed to increase by £5 per year at Band D (2.12%); for 
Band A that is £3.33 for the year, 6 pence per week.

The cumulative Budget Strategy savings target of £2.7m is incorporated into 
the 2020-2021 revenue budget; achievement is dependent on the outturn of 
2019-2020.

The Capital Programme 2019-2023 is projected as £20m.

B. Financial Settlement

The financial settlement for 2020-2021 consists of Revenue Support Grant of 
£1,272,268 and Business Rate Retention Baseline of £3,129,475, totalling 
£4,401,743.  This settlement is a rollover from the 2019-2020 figures as the 
future for local government finance remains under review; the settlement is 
broadly the same as expected in the Medium Term Financial Plan which was 
£4,417,800.  The Council has been awarded £11,074 of New Homes Bonus 
for 2020-2021, which slightly offsets the settlement estimate difference.

The financial settlement is provisional and will be finalised in February 2020; 
no changes are anticipated.

Since 2010 the Council’s financial settlement, which funds recurring services, 
has reduced from £9.1m to an equivalent of £3.6m (Council Tax Support is 
excluded from 2020-2021 for a true comparison); a 60% reduction of £5.5m.

C. Business Rate Retention

The Business Rate Retention Scheme figures included in the proposed 
budget are based on a provisional NNDR1 form (a formal estimate of 
Business Rates for Government).  The final form is submitted after this report 
is drafted; the budget figures will only be altered if they are significantly 
different.

The budget relies upon £3,664,920 of business rate income which includes 
growth since the retention system began in April 2013.  This income is 
£535,445 above the current Baseline determined by Government.

The complete estimate of business rate income included in the budget for 
2020-2021 is £4.1m; £1m above the current Baseline.  This level of business 
rate income is not guaranteed; some of the additional business rate income 
may be lost through rateable value appeals and collection difficulties, and in 

Page 30

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 4



later years with the reform/reset of business rate retention – there may also 
be new build or rateable value increases, but these are not possible to firmly 
estimate now for the period ended March 2021.

D. Core Spending Power

The Core Spending Power consists of the financial settlement, New Homes 
Bonus and assumed Council Tax for the year.  This is calculated by the 
Government based on available information and indicates an increase in Core 
Spending Power of 3.25% to £9.323m - however Council Tax base growth is 
overstated and once adjusted the increase is 2.8%; Core Spending Power of 
£9.281m.

Nationally there is an increase in Core Spending Power of 6.3%.

The Core Spending Power is different to the revenue budget of £10.088m.  
The revenue budget, or total revenue financing, includes the parish precepts, 
any business rates above the Baseline and any impacts from the Collection 
Fund in prior years (Council Tax and business rates); shown gross of any 
movement with reserves.

E. Budget Strategy

The current Budget Strategy (2016 to 2020) aims to eliminate the forecast 
£2.7m deficit by 2019-2020; this is in addition to the £5m deficit eliminated by 
the first Budget Strategy (2011 to 2016) plus the £1.2m eliminated by Officers 
when setting the 2011-2012 budget.  The proposed General Fund revenue 
budget for 2020-2021 includes these cumulative Budget Strategy savings; 
£8.9m in total.

The target saving for the current Budget Strategy was £2.7m and the current 
projection identifies that £2.8m (Appendix 1) may be achieved by 31st March, 
2020, this is dependent on the outturn for 2019-2020; £0.1m of the Budget 
Strategy savings are reinvested in balancing the 2020-2021 budget, so £2.7m 
is considered to be resilient.

The January 2020 review of the whole Budget Strategy identifies that the 
projected savings and reductions from 2011 to 2020 may total £9m; £0.1m is 
to be realised in 2021-2022; this is incorporated into the Medium Term 
Financial Plan.

Item Saving/reduction
2011-2021 budget setting £1.2m

2012-2016 Budget Strategy £5.0m
2016-2020 Budget Strategy at March 2020 £2.7m
2016-2020 Budget Strategy at March 2022 £0.1m

Total of savings and reductions £9.0m

Page 31

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 4



F. Outturn 2019-2020

Based on quarter 3 monitoring, the outturn for 2019-2020 is a balanced 
budget with a contribution required from the Medium Term Financial Plan 
reserve of £109k.  The quarterly reports will continue to monitor the remainder 
of 2019-2020 and report exceptions.

G. Budget 2020-2021

The proposed General Fund budget for 2020-2021 attached at Appendix 2 is 
£10,088,720 which includes £148,080 for parish precepts.  At Appendix 3 the 
budget for 2020-2021 is shown by service, also referred to as cost centres.

The budget is balanced which is an improvement against the Medium Term 
Financial Plan projection of a £297,650 deficit; a variance analysis is included 
at Appendix 4.

The £10.1m total revenue financing comes primarily from Council Tax and 
Retained Business Rates that the Council collects:

H. Budget Items to Note

a. Borrowing Costs

No new borrowing has been included in the proposed budget.

b. Inflationary Pressures

The cost of inflation on expenditure has been estimated within the budget 
proposals and totals £329,460:

 £143,650 for staff pay award
 £48,800 for property costs

Page 32

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 4



 £130,810 for contracted services
 £6,200 for supplies and services

c. Budget Assumptions

The budget assumptions were presented to Committee in November 2019 
and there are a number of adjustments to report from the budget setting 
exercise:

Previously reported Assumption in the proposed 
budget

Staff pay; superannuation 19.5% Superannuation 20.6%; updated from 
the draft pension triennial valuation

Grant to external bodies; funded until 
2020-2021

Grant to external bodies funded until 
2024-2025; agreed by Council in 
March 2019

Temporary surplus cash reducing by 
£3m each year

Temporary surplus cash reducing by 
£2m each year; cash flow analysis

New homes bonus; no further awards 
due to threshold

New homes bonus; small award for 
2020-2021 and final legacy payment 
totalling £11k

Council Tax; Band D increase the 
higher of 2.99% or £5; levels 
published with the settlement

Council Tax; Band D increase the 
higher of 2% or £5; levels published 
with the draft settlement

d. Car Parking Charges

No tariff increase is proposed for pay and display tickets or contract parking 
permits.

e. Staffing

There are 226 posts budgeted for on the establishment for the General Fund; 
these equate to 195 full time equivalents (previously 221 posts and 185 full 
time equivalents).

The Housing Revenue Account has 51 posts which are equivalent to 46 full 
time equivalents (previously 49 posts and 45 full time equivalents).

f. New Posts

The proposed budget includes new posts already reported, namely:

 Director of People and Place
 Policy and Engagement Officer
 Head of Legal and Governance

These are two further posts included to address current gaps in the Council’s 
structure and governance arrangements:

Page 33

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 4



 Communications Officer £39,420 including on-costs
 Contracts and Procurement Manager £49,350 including on-costs

The Communications Officer is a full time post on the Senior Officer grade 
SO2 and this post will address external press and public relations, customer 
consultation and involvement (advising services about engagement), social 
media and general communication content, internal communications, the 
creation of an image library and Council branding or consistency of standards 
of published output.  This post will replace the services currently provided 
through an external contract.

The Contracts and Procurement Manager is a full time post on the Principal 
Officer grade PO8-10.  This post will address the need for consistent and 
robust contract management, tendering, contract standing order compliance, 
procurement generally and the achievement and transparency of value for 
money.  Following a successful recruitment, the contracting and procurement 
across the Council will be reviewed and these services will be delivered 
through an efficient and compliant process.  It is anticipated, though not fully 
developed, that a centralised function will be established; the ideal 
arrangement to achieve compliance and ensure the consistent measurement 
of value for money.  Once established there are efficiencies that this function 
will generate and contribute to the added cost of the post and potentially 
reduce core budgets, releasing funds that can be used to advance the 
Council’s priorities.

g. Council Tax Base

The Council Tax requirement is based on the Council Tax Base.  The Council 
Tax Base for 2020-2021 has been set at 19,730.84 Band D equivalents for 
the whole area and is split as:

 Barrow unparished 16,004.20
 Dalton with Newton Town Council 2,359.55
 Askam and Ireleth Town Council 1,107.45
 Lindal and Marton Parish Council 259.64

The Council Tax Base has increased by 210.59 from last year, largely due to 
additions to the Rating List; growth is anticipated in the Medium Term 
Financial Plan.

I. Budget Items for Approval

a. Council Tax

The Budget Strategy assumes that Council Tax is increased to the maximum 
permitted by the Council Tax Referendum Principles; this is the Council Tax 
value assumed in the Core Spending Power calculation.  The 2020-2021 
Principles are that the Council Tax increase is not excessive if it is under 2% 
or no greater than £5 – this is lower than previous years and lower than the 
Medium Term Financial Plan projections.

Page 34

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 4



The proposed budget includes an increase in the Barrow Borough Council 
element of the Council Tax of £5 at Band D (2.12%) which generates £99k.

As the following table shows, 59% of properties in the Borough are in Band A, 
the Band A charge increases by £3.33 for the year, 6 pence per week.  

Band Ratio Chargeable Dwellings
Chargeable 
Dwellings 
Grouped

 Annual
Increase 

in 
Borough 
Element 

 
Increase

Per 
Week 

A 6/9 19,237 59% £3.33 £0.06
B 7/9 5,395 16% £3.89 £0.07
C 8/9 4,644 14%

89%
£4.45 £0.09

D 9/9 2,337 7% 7% £5.00 £0.10
E 11/9 1,013 3% £6.11 £0.12
F 13/9 232 1% £7.22 £0.14
G 15/9 71 0% £8.33 £0.16
H 18/9 3 0%

4%

£10.00 £0.19

The Council Tax Base is calculated on Band D equivalents; the table shows 
that 89% of properties in the Borough are lower than Band D, giving the 
authority a low Council Tax Base.

b. Pay Policy

The Council is required to publish the Pay Policy each year to provide 
transparency of the Council’s approach to setting the pay of its employees.  
The Pay Policy for 2020-2021 is attached as Appendix 5 and has been 
updated to include the salaries required to comply with the regulations; these 
are 2019-2020 salaries as at the date of publishing.

The appendices referred to within the Pay Policy are not included as they 
have not changed; they are available on the Council website.

c. Fees and Charges

For the miscellaneous fees and charges not currently delegated to officers, 
the proposed budget includes a 2.5% increase; these are items such as 
grazing licences, Town Hall hire and recharged copy costs.

d. Cumbria Business Rate Pool

The changes to the Business Rate Retention Scheme are not yet decided and 
the arrangements continue as previous years.  For 2020-2021 the Cumbria 
Business Rate Pool continues as it is, with full Cumbria membership.

Page 35

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 4



The governance arrangements provide sufficient mitigation for each authority.

The estimated Pool benefit is not yet available and it is proposed that this is 
added to Major Projects reserve (for example, as match funding or feasibility 
work) for 2020-2021.

J. Use of Reserves

a. Reserve Movements in 2020-2021

The General Fund budget summary for 2020-2021 incorporates a net 
contribution to reserves of £0.6m:

Additions
 £586,280 Pension Fund volatility* 
 £398,300 Business Rate Retention volatility
 £39,050 prior year Council Tax surplus

Less (used)
 £188,480 prior year Business Rate Retention deficit
 £64,340 use of ring-fenced grants
 £56,970 committed funding to external organisations
 £49,250 public buildings maintenance
 £20,000 insurance excesses
 £61,150 contingency reserve for one-off items

*The Pension Fund volatility is a new reserve entry for 2020-2021.  The (Local 
Government) Pension Fund is subject to triennial valuations that set the 
contribution rates and deficit funding required from employers in the scheme.  

The valuation period covers 2020-2023 and the contribution rate for current 
employees has significantly increased whilst the deficit funding has 
significantly decreased.  The valuation is not finalised but no great difference 
is expected in the final figures.

The Pension Fund has a varied asset portfolio which, at the point of valuation, 
is performing better than anticipated and brings the Pension Fund closer into 
balance.  The resilience of these asset values beyond this valuation period is 
subject to judgement and the markets that the assets are held within.  It is 
prudent to set-aside or reserve this “saving” as far as possible – if the pension 
contributions were to increase this would provide a cushion; if they decrease 
permanently or remain lower than previous valuations, then the annual review 
may re-purpose the amounts reserved and/or savings released to revenue.

The forward projection of earmarked reserves used for 2020-2021 also 
includes a number of other anticipated reductions in reserves:

 £0.7m major projects
 £0.1m service transformation

Page 36

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 4



 £0.3m contingency reserve for one-off items

b. Reserve Movements in 2019-2020

In order to establish a Major Projects reserve and complete other transfers 
between reserves, transactions will be made in 2019-2020 and reported with 
the outturn.  This includes the ending of the Medium Term Financial Plan 
support as a reserve; Section M of this report explains how the medium term 
deficit may be supported.

The projected earmarked reserves at 31 March 2019 and 2020 are attached 
at Appendix 6.

At year-end earmarked reserves are again reviewed and any additional 
income reserved and there may also be transfers between reserves required.  
Any deficit or surplus balance will be dealt with through reserves.  All final 
movements in reserves are reported to the Executive Committee with the 
Outturn Report. 

K. Capital Programme

The Capital Strategy is attached at Appendix 7 and includes the Capital 
Programme for 2019-2023.  The Capital Strategy has been refreshed to 
reflect the Council Plan and the proposed Capital Programme.

The Capital Programme was last reported to this Committee on 4 September, 
2019.  The main variations are reprofiling between years and between capital 
and revenue attributions; 2022-2023 has been added as a new year to the 
Programme; the budget for Barrow Island Growth Zone has been increased 
by £53,700.  The full Programme is contained in Appendix 1 on Page 5 of the 
Capital Strategy; a summary is shown below:

 2019-2020  2020-2021  2021-2022  2022-2023 
 £  £  £  £ 

Investment in public housing 2,319,500 2,031,000 2,031,000 2,031,000
Investment in private housing 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
Investment in Housing Market Renewal 31,926 520,000 563,600 -
Investment in Public Buildings 162,311 150,000 150,000 150,000
Industrial & Commercial  Properties 3,764,227 88,490 974,892 -
Investment in other public assets 225,214 60,000 60,000 60,000
Investment in Community Initiatives 158,368 - - -
Asset Investment Fund 100,000 150,000 150,000 150,000
Total 7,761,546 3,999,490 4,929,492 3,391,000

 Funding of Capital Programme: 
 Grants and Contributions      3,316,312      1,053,100      1,000,000      1,000,000 
 Reserves      2,385,203      2,031,000      2,031,000      2,031,000 
 Capital Receipts      2,060,031         915,390      1,898,492         360,000 
Total 7,761,546 3,999,490 4,929,492 3,391,000

Page 37

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 4



The Capital Programme 2019-2023 relies on usable capital receipts which 
must be realised to avoid changes or delays to the projects beyond 2019-
2020; this particularly applies to the £0.975m (Industrial & Commercial 
Properties) included in 2021-2022.

An Asset Management Plan is to be developed during 2020-2021 that will 
inform future programming for Council assets planned maintenance.

L. Treasury Management Strategy Statement

The Treasury Management Strategy Statement is attached at Appendix 8 
and details the capital prudential and treasury indicators for 2020-2021 to 
2022-2023.

The Treasury Management Strategy Statement reflects the budget proposals 
and forward projections in the Medium Term Financial Plan, and details the 
capital prudential and treasury indicators for 2020-2021 to 2022-2023, 
highlighting:

 projected capital expenditure plans and funding;
 the Council’s borrowing need (the Capital Financing Requirement 

CFR);
 the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy Statement , i.e. if the 

Council was to borrow how much it would charge the revenue account 
for the cost of borrowing;

 the estimates, limits and prudence of future debt levels;
 the affordability impact of the capital programme;
 the Council’s debt and investment projections;
 the Council’s borrowing and investment strategies; and
 specific limits on treasury activities.

The capital prudential indicators and treasury management strategy give both 
a position statement and details of the future position of the Council’s capital 
and treasury plans.

Specifically the Treasury Management Strategy Statement sets the authorised 
limit for external debt; a control on the maximum level of borrowing.  This 
represents a limit beyond which external debt is prohibited, and this limit 
needs to be set or revised by Full Council.  It reflects the level of external debt 
which, while not desired, could be afforded in the short term, but is not 
sustainable in the longer term:

1. This is the statutory limit determined under section 3 (1) of the Local 
Government Act 2003. The Government retains an option to control 
either the total of all Councils’ plans, or those of a specific council, 
although this power has not yet been exercised.

2. The Council is asked to approve the following authorised limit:

Page 38

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 4



2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23
Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate

£m £m £m £m
Total 55 55 55 54

Authorised limit

M. Medium Term Financial Plan

The Medium Term Financial Plan for 2020-2024 is attached at Appendix 9.

Financial planning is a key tool for strategic management and is an aid to 
operational decision making.  Without financial planning the Council would be 
unlikely to achieve its priorities or make the best use of its resources.  The 
Medium Term Financial Plan is a financial representation of the Council’s 
vision and supports its priorities.
  
The projections within the Medium Term Financial Plan identify deficits for 
each year however it is recognised that these may potentially be funded from 
Business Rate volatility, additional Business Rates or Pension Fund volatility; 
or there may be opportunities to eliminate or reduce the deficits during 2020-
2021.

The reliance on additional business rates as core funding remains in the each 
projected year at around £0.5m.  This represents the minimum growth that the 
Council should expect to retain under any reset of the Business Rate 
Baseline.  Ideally 100% of growth would be retained but it is not prudent to 
budget on that basis.  In summary, the medium term projections are:

 Estimate
2021-2022

£ 

 Estimate
2022-2023

£ 

 Estimate
2023-2024

£ 
Direct costs 9,101,520 9,472,850 9,868,730
Indirect costs 831,200 831,200 831,200
Treasury portfolio 938,570 957,570 976,570
Depreciation reversal (1,716,660) (1,716,660) (1,716,660)
Pension contributions 288,750 294,550 300,470
Pension Fund volatility 585,150 583,980 582,780
Net revenue budget 10,028,530 10,423,490 10,843,090

Council tax precept (4,890,570) (5,040,110) (5,192,150)
Retained business rates (4,489,780) (4,579,570) (4,671,160)
Additional business rates retained (529,780) (540,380) (551,190)
Total revenue financing (9,910,130) (10,160,060) (10,414,500)

Deficit 118,400 263,430 428,590

The forward projection of reserves identifies the deficit being funded from 
volatility as referred to above; it is hoped that there will be more certainty 
established during 2020-2021 and a reduction in volatility.

Page 39

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 4



Reserve
Balance at
31/3/2022

£m

Balance at
31/3/2023

£m

Balance at
31/3/2024

£m
Transformation including Major Projects 0.379 0.112 0.066
Renewals 0.818 0.718 0.618
Insurance 0.040 0.020 0.000
Losses 0.862 0.862 0.862
Budget contingency 1.149 0.992 0.734
Welfare support 0.211 0.154 0.097
Ring-fenced 0.384 0.283 0.183

3.843 3.141 2.560
Additional Business Rates 0.993 0.993 0.993
Pension Fund volatility 1.170 1.754 2.337

Projected deficits in the Medium Term Financial Plan supported by reserves:

Projected reserves 5.888 5.507 5.080

Business Rate volatility, additional Business 
Rates or Pension Fund volatility (0.118) (0.381) (0.810)

N. Fund Balances

The Reserves and Balances Policy is attached at Appendix 10.

The requirement for financial reserves is acknowledged in statute.  The Local 
Government Finance Act 1992 require billing and precepting authorities in 
England and Wales to have regard to the level of reserves needed for 
meeting estimated future expenditure when calculating the budget 
requirement.  Local authorities may also ‘earmark’ specific parts of the 
General Fund reserve; these are referred to as Earmarked Reserves.

The Policy sets out the Fund balances (General Fund and Housing Revenue 
Account) which are calculated based on a risk-assessment basis; also the 
usable earmarked reserves and their purpose.  The operation of reserves is 
also set out, as are the responsibilities and other protocols.

The Fund balances have been risk assessed as:

General 
Fund

Housing 
Revenue 
Account

Minimum Fund balance 1,900,000£ 900,000£    
Fund balance held 2,300,000£ 1,000,000£ 

The additional Fund balances held will not be released unless all other usable 
reserves are depleted.  Balances and reserves are created and maintained 
from revenue resources.  The Council accrues reserves for specific purposes 
and transfer any additional income and savings generated beyond the budget 

Page 40

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 4



requirement each year, into reserves.  It is anticipated that this approach will 
provide sufficient usable reserves for the medium term.

O. Director of Resources Statement

In accordance with Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003 I confirm 
that I, as the Chief Finance Officer of the Council, am satisfied that the budget 
assumptions and estimates are robust and that I consider the proposed level 
of financial reserves held by the Council to be adequate.

P. Budget Consultation

The 2020-2021 General Fund budget is the first year after the completion of 
the Budget Strategy 2016-2020 – the budget is based upon the 
resulting/remaining core budget and the assumptions underlying the Budget 
Strategy, updated where relevant.  

The budget assumptions were presented to the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee and a consultation was published on the Council’s website for 
comments.

There are no comments to report for consideration or for information and no 
changes have been incorporated in the proposed budget from the comments 
received.

(i) Legal Implications

It is a statutory requirement to set the Council’s budgets and the Council Tax.

Members should be aware of the provisions of Section 106 of the Local 
Government Finance Act 1992, which applies to Members where they are 
present at a meeting of the Council or the Executive Committee and at the 
time of the meeting an amount of Council Tax is payable by them and has 
remained unpaid for at least two months, and any budget or Council Tax 
calculation, or recommendation or decision which might affect the making of 
any such calculation, is the subject of consideration at the meeting.

In these circumstances, any such Members shall at the meeting and as soon 
practicable after its commencement disclose the fact that Section 106 applies 
to them and shall not vote on any question concerning these matters.  It 
should be noted that such Members are not debarred from speaking on these 
matters.

Failure to comply with these requirements constitutes a criminal offence, 
unless any such Members can prove they did not know that Section 106 
applied to them at the time of the meeting or that the matter in question was 
the subject of consideration at the meeting.

The Local Government Act 2003 requires the Council to adhere to the CIPFA 
Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities.

Page 41

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 4



(ii) Risk Assessment

The Council’s financial resilience and delivery of the Budget Strategy are 
recognised in the Corporate Risk Register.  The Council’s budgets, Medium 
Term Financial Plan and Reserves and Balances, recognise risk and the 
impacts are taken into account and mitigated where possible and built into 
assumptions and estimates.

(iii) Financial Implications

The financial implications are set out in the report.

(iv) Health and Safety Implications

The recommendation has no significant implications.

(v) Equality and Diversity

The recommendation has no detrimental impact on service users showing any 
of the protected characteristics under current Equalities legislation.

(vi) Health and Wellbeing Implications

The recommendation has no adverse effect on the Health and Wellbeing of 
users of this service.

(vii) Council Plan and Priorities

The Council Plan is the strategic document that guides decision-making and how 
public money is spent.  Without financial planning the Council would be unlikely to 
achieve its Priorities or make the best use of its resources.  The General Fund 
budget, Medium Term Financial Plan and associated documents contained in this 
report are the financial representation of that strategy for 2020-2024.

Background Papers

Nil

Report Author

Director of Resources

Page 42

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 4



Cumulative Budget Strategy at 31st March 2020

Core deficit and target reduction for Budget Strategy 2016-2020

Original projection 2,403,460£    

New Homes Bonus 299,750£       Scheme changed mid-Strategy.

Core deficit challenge 2,703,210£    

Projected final savings and reductions at 31st March 2020

Cumulative

saving

£

Notes

Revenues and Benefits 1,165,880 a

Treasury Management 309,750

Burials and Cremations 232,530

Street Cleaning 151,530

Internal Audit 41,500 b

Forum 123,640 c

Park Leisure Centre 485,090 d

Commercial Properties 294,670

Playgrounds (90,440) e

Kennels 23,300

Dock Museum 39,150

Allotments 31,670

Barrow Park 23,370

Public Conveniences 15,020

2,846,660

Reinvested to balance the budget (143,450)

Core deficit eliminated 2,703,210

Notes

a. Service now delivered in-house; a final small saving is projected for 2021-2022.

b. Service now delivered in-house.

c. Subsidy reduction; operations retained in-house.

d. Service now delivered externally.

e. Mid-Strategy the arrangements for health and safety, inspections and routine

    maintenance were strengthened.

Page 43

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 5



General Fund Budget 2020-2021

Actual

Outturn

2018-2019

£

Original

Budget

2019-2020

£

Revised

Budget

2019-2020

£

Proposed

Budget

2020-2021

£

Subjective headings:

Staff pay 5,422,017 6,528,780 6,450,380 7,358,350

Pension accounting 288,386 0 0 0

Staff other costs 127,882 107,170 154,460 81,020

Transport 86,607 107,440 107,940 113,450

Property costs 2,257,313 2,073,320 2,901,470 1,999,060

Supplies and services 3,975,907 2,587,700 4,155,000 2,360,800

Contracts 5,207,920 3,762,960 3,783,370 3,862,780

Housing benefits 17,714,125 17,820,680 17,820,680 15,759,080

Housing benefit grants (17,693,534) (17,617,720) (17,617,720) (15,635,860)

External income (8,526,623) (6,438,720) (6,980,280) (6,705,660)

Direct costs 8,860,000 8,931,610 10,775,300 9,193,020

Internal income; HRA & capital (836,870) (839,690) (839,690) (920,370)

Capital charges 2,060,650 1,704,210 1,704,210 1,716,660

Indirect costs 1,223,780 864,520 864,520 796,290

Net Expenditure 10,083,780 9,796,130 11,639,820 9,989,310

External interest earned (197,748) (126,000) (200,000) (171,000)

External interest paid 584,643 584,650 584,650 584,650

Minimum revenue provision 505,920 505,920 505,920 505,920

Revenue finance capital spend 331,398 189,960 0 0

Items excluded from Council Tax (927,638) (1,704,210) (1,704,210) (1,716,660)

Items included in Council Tax 1,100,744 1,121,110 1,121,110 283,060

Movement in reserves (785,024) (54,230) (1,239,430) 583,440

Budget variations 0 30,000 3,260 30,000

Net Revenue Budget 10,696,075 10,343,330 10,711,120 10,088,720

Budget financed by:

Revenue Support Grant (1,688,396) (1,251,880) (1,251,880) (1,272,270)

Retained Business Rates (8,851,880) (8,566,440) (8,566,440) (8,833,210)

Business Rates tariff 4,920,107 5,088,030 5,088,030 5,170,930

Business Rates levy 680,397 536,760 536,760 576,320

Business Rates pool (426,890) (107,360) (107,360) 0

Business Rates prior year (surplus)/deficit 569,503 (231,910) (231,910) 188,480

New Homes Bonus (94,633) (2,800) (2,800) (11,080)

New burdens (83,820) (77,840) (98,630) 0

Other Government grants (1,010,242) (1,048,760) (1,395,760) (977,260)

Council Tax precept (4,513,450) (4,718,930) (4,718,930) (4,891,580)

Council Tax prior year (surplus)/deficit (196,771) 37,800 37,800 (39,050)

Total Revenue Financing (10,696,075) (10,343,330) (10,711,120) (10,088,720)

Page 44

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 5



General Fund Budget 2020-2021

Service (cost centre)

Proposed

Budget

2020-2021

£

Corporate management 1,142,950

Democratic representation and management 320,460

Corporate support 195,440

Cost of collection 548,060

Local council tax reduction scheme administration 468,490

Registration of electors 298,580

Emergency planning 38,160

Local land charges (28,950)

General grants 131,830

Dock museum 567,140

Forum 790,910

Sports development and community recreation 94,450

Leisure contracts 390,410

Barrow park 394,260

Parks and open spaces 504,130

Playground 337,810

Allotments 0

Cemeteries 122,380

Crematorium (505,950)

Coast protection 81,380

Food safety 222,580

Pollution 173,720

Occupational health 86,090

Port health 10,550

Public health inspection 127,600

Kennels 76,670

Licensing 17,010

Public conveniences 100,960

Street cleansing 690,570

Streetcare team 94,910

Waste collection 1,013,350

Page 45

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 5



General Fund Budget 2020-2021

Service (cost centre)

Proposed

Budget

2020-2021

£

Recycling 218,670

Building control 124,010

Work in default 7,500

Development control 354,450

Planning policy 205,700

Regeneration 163,190

The markets 130,740

The commercial estate (514,050)

Street fittings 37,320

Footpath lighting 55,600

Off street car parking (300,560)

Private sector housing 134,090

Housing benefits administration 574,400

Housing benefits paid (net of DWP subsidy) 123,220

Homelessness 73,180

Technical and other items:

Parish precepts 148,080

Reversal of depreciation (1,716,660)

Pension contributions 283,060

Treasury management 830,810

Central budgets to be allocated (bids required) 36,580

Movement in earmarked reserves 583,440

Budget variations 30,000 195,310

Net Revenue Budget 10,088,720

Page 46

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 5



2020-2021 Variance against Medium Term Financial Plan

£ £

2020-2021 deficit projected in the Medium Term Financial Plan 297,650

Reduction in pension funding from draft triennial valuation (586,280)

Transferred to reserves 586,280 0

Additional business rate income for 2020-2021 (917,690)

Transferred to reserves 398,300 (519,390)

Additional savings from Budget Strategy (143,450)

External interest earned on temporary deposits (63,000)

Staffing/establishment changes, including on-costs 285,360

Increased playgrounds H&S, inspections and maintenance 107,660

Other expenditure and income changes 35,170

2020-2021 proposed budget deficit/(surplus) 0

Staffing changes

Creation of Director of People and Place

Deletion of Assistant Director Built Environment and Regeneration

Creation of Policy and Engagement Officer

Creation of Head of Legal and Governance

Creation of Communications Officer

Creation of Contracts and Procurement Manager

*MTFP; Medium Term Financial Plan

These are the permanent staffing and establishment changes compared to the MTFP* 

budget projection for 2020-2021.

Other permanent changes to hours and grading agreed throughout 2019-2020 continue 

into future years.

Page 47

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 5



 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Pay Policy Statement 2020/21 

 
 

Version Control: 

Document Name: Pay Policy Statement 2020/21 

Version: February 2020 

Author: Director of Resources 

Approved by: Executive Committee/Council 

Date Approved: February 2020 

Review Date March 2021 

 

Page 48

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 5



Barrow Borough Council – Pay Policy Statement 2020/21 

 

Barrow Borough Council Pay Policy Statement 2020/21 
 
Background 
 
Under section 112 of the Local Government Act 1972, the Council has the ‘power to 
appoint officers on such reasonable terms and conditions as authority thinks fit’.  This 
Pay Policy Statement sets out the Council’s approach to pay policy in accordance with 
the requirements of Section 38 of the Localism Act 2011. 
 
The purpose of the statement is to provide transparency with regard to the Council’s 
approach to setting the pay of its employees by identifying; 
 

□ The detail and level of remuneration of its most senior staff i.e. ‘chief officers’, 
as defined by the relevant legislation; 

□ Executive committee are responsible for ensuring the provisions set out in this 
statement are applied consistently throughout the Council and recommending 
any amendments to full Council. 

 
The Pay Policy Statement was approved by full Council on 20th March 2012 coming 
into immediate effect and is subject to review on an annual basis being approved by 
31st March each year. 
 
Other legislation relevant to pay and remuneration 
 
In determining the pay and remuneration of all of its Chief Officers, the Council will 
comply with all relevant employment legislation.  This includes legislation such as the 
Equality Act 2010, Part Time Employment (Prevention of Less Favourable Treatment) 
Regulations 2000 and where relevant, the Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of 
Earnings) Regulations. 
 
Pay Structure for Chief Officers 
 
The Council uses locally determined rates with spot salaries, which are subject to pay 
increases negotiated with joint trade unions, via the national pay bargaining 
arrangements (the JNC for Chief Officers). 
 
All other pay related allowances are the subject of either nationally or locally 
negotiated rates, having been determined from time to time in accordance with 
collective bargaining machinery. 
 
From time to time it may be necessary to take account of the external pay levels in the 
labour market in order to attract and retain employees with particular experience, skills 
and capacity.  Where necessary, the Council will ensure the requirement for such is 
objectively justified by reference to clear and transparent evidence of relevant market 
comparators, using data sources available from within the local government sector 
and outside, as appropriate. 
 
Any temporary supplement to the salary scale for the grade, for example ex-gratia 
payments and honoraria, is approved in accordance with the Council’s constitution, i.e. 
delegated to the Chief Executive and the Director of Resources who may seek 
Executive Committee approval if so determined.   
 
 

Page 49

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 5



Barrow Borough Council – Pay Policy Statement 2020/21 

 

Chief Officer Remuneration 
 
For the purposes of this statement, senior manager means ‘chief officers’ and are 
defined below.  The posts falling within the statutory definition are set out below, with 
details of their basic salary as at 1st April 2019.  In addition to the Chief Executive, 
there are three employees designated as Chief Officers and receiving remuneration 
over £50,000 per annum.  The Council’s Organisation Structure is attached at 
Appendix 1. 
 
Chief Executive 
 
Salary currently set at £99,594 pa (spot salary) 
Will receive any inflationary increases agreed as part of national negotiations under 
the auspices of the JNC for Chief Executives 
Will not receive Returning Officer fees 
Will not be subject to performance related pay 
Will be published as part of transparency agenda 
 
Director of Resources  
 
Salary set at £79,675 pa (spot salary) 
Will receive any inflationary increases agreed as part of national negotiations under 
the auspices of the JNC for Chief Officers 
Will not be subject to performance related pay 
Will be published as part of transparency agenda 
 
Assistant Director Housing & Assistant Director Community Services 
Salary set at £50,879 pa (spot salary) 
Will receive any inflationary increases agreed as part of national negotiations under 
the auspices of the JNC for Chief Officers 
Will not be subject to performance related pay 
Will be published as part of transparency agenda 
 
Recruitment of Chief Officers 
 
The Council’s policy and procedures with regard to recruitment of Chief Officers is set 
out within the Recruitment Policy (Appendix 2) and as set out in the Constitution.  
Executive Committee or a sub-committee will make all Chief Officer appointments. 
 
When recruiting to all posts the Council will take full and proper account of all 
provisions of relevant employment law and its own policies (Recruitment Policy, 
Appendix 2, Organisational Change Policy, Appendix 5) as approved by Council. 
 
The determination of the remuneration to be offered to any newly appointed chief 
officer will be in accordance with the pay structure and relevant policies in place at the 
time of recruitment. 
 
Additions to Salary of Chief Officers 
 
The level of remuneration is not variable dependant upon the achievement of defined 
targets. 
 

Page 50

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 5



Barrow Borough Council – Pay Policy Statement 2020/21 

 

To meet specific operational requirements, it may be necessary for an individual to 
temporarily take on additional duties to their identified role.  The Council’s 
arrangements for authorising any additional remuneration relating to temporary 
additional duties are set out in the NJC Terms and Conditions for Local Government 
Services for calculation of honoraria, and the Councils Ex-gratia Payments Policy 
(Appendix 3). 
 
In addition to basic salary, the following posts receive elements of ‘additional pay’ 
which are chargeable to UK Income Tax and do not solely constitute reimbursement of 
expenses occurred in the fulfilment of their duties; 
 
Post    Payment Details 
Chief Officers  Lump Sum Car Allowances 
 
Payments on Termination  
 
The Council’s approach to statutory and discretionary payments on termination of 
employment of chief officers, prior to reaching normal retirement age, is set out within 
the Early Retirement Policy (Appendix 4) and Organisational Change Policy (Appendix 
5) in accordance with Regulations 5 and 6 of the Local Government (Early Termination 
of Employment) Discretionary Compensation) Regulations 2006. 
 
The Council has a voluntary redundancy scheme in place aimed at encouraging 
volunteers and reducing the need for compulsory redundancies.  This scheme uses 
the statutory calculator (age/length of service) to determine the number of weeks pay 
volunteers will be entitled to, subject to a maximum of 30 weeks’ pay.  Actual pay is 
used in the calculation, NOT the statutory maximum. 
 
For volunteers aged over 55 and entitled to early access to pension, there will be no 
discretionary additions to payments.   
 
The severance terms apply to all employees of the Council. 
 
Any payments falling outside the provisions of the above policies, (pay in lieu of notice, 
working notice, gardening leave etc) will be made on a case by case basis and shall 
be subject to a formal decision by Executive Committee and approved by Council. 
 
Settlement Agreements 
 
Under the Enterprise and Regulatory Reform Act 2013 the Council will use Settlement 
Agreements where there exists a clear and real risk of an Employment Tribunal case 
and where it is commercially expedient to do so. Settlement Agreements will not be 
considered as normal protocol when employment terminates.  
 
Settlement Agreements are not necessary in a voluntary or compulsory redundancy 
scenario. If the Council’s redundancy policy and procedure has been complied with 
and if a Senior Manager’s employment has been terminated with proper notice and 
where any dismissal is fair, a Settlement Agreement is unnecessary. In addition, the 
Council avoids having to pay the legal fees incurred by the employee for the review of 
the agreement. The Council will therefore only use Settlement Agreements where 
there exists a real risk of Employment Tribunal litigation. 
 
 

Page 51

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 5



Barrow Borough Council – Pay Policy Statement 2020/21 

 

 
 
Publication 
 
Upon approval by full Council, this statement will be published on the Council’s 
website. 
 
Lowest Paid Employees 
 
The lowest paid persons employed under a contract of employment with the Council 
are employed on full time (37 hours) equivalent salaries in accordance with the 
minimum spinal point with the Council’s grading structure. 
 
As at 1st April 2019, this is £17,364 per annum (spinal column point 1).   
 
The current pay levels within the Council (at 1.2.19) gives the multiple between the 
median full time equivalent earnings and the Chief Executive as 4.2:1. 
 
Accountability and Decision Making 
 
In accordance with the Constitution of the Council, Executive Committee are 
responsible for decision making in relation to the recruitment, pay, terms and 
conditions and severance arrangements in relation to employees of the Council. 
 
Re-employment / Re-engagement of former Chief Officers 
 
The Council will not normally re-employ/re-engage former Chief Officers. 
 
Appendices 
 
Appendix 1  Organisation Structure 
Appendix 2  Recruitment Policy 
Appendix 3  Ex-gratia Policy 
Appendix 4  Early Retirement Policy 
Appendix 5  Organisational Change Policy 
 
Updated January 2020 
 
 
 

Page 52

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 5



Earmarked Reserves Movements 2019-2020 and 2020-2021

 2019-2020

Projected earmarked reserves 

Balance

01/04/2019

£m

Added

£m

Used

£m

Transfers

£m

Balance

31/03/2020

£m

Medium Term Financial Plan support 1.459 0.007 (0.117) (1.349) 0.000

Transformation including Major Projects 0.390 0.000 (0.326) 1.321 1.385

Renewals 2.009 0.150 (0.623) (0.569) 0.967

Insurance 0.100 0.000 (0.020) 0.000 0.080

Losses 0.862 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.862

Budget contingency includes* 1.167 0.309 (0.889) 1.111 1.698

Other earmarked reserves 0.416 0.000 (0.078) (0.014) 0.324

Ring-fenced 0.698 0.000 (0.150) 0.000 0.548

7.101 0.466 (2.203) 0.500 5.864

*Additional Business Rates and volatility 0.783 0.696 (0.196) (0.500) 0.783

*Pension Fund volatility 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

Projected reserves 7.884 1.162 (2.399) 0.000 6.647

2019-2020 transfers (in principle): £m

Transfer the remaining balance of the Medium Term Financial Support reserve: (1.349)

Transfer available balance from renewals reserve: (0.569)

Transfer available balance from Business Rate volatility reserve: (0.500)

Transfer available balance from other earmarked reserves: (0.014)

Establish the Major Projects reserve within the Transformation reserve: 1.200

Top up Transformation reserve: 0.121

Top up Budget Contingency reserve: 1.111

0.000

 2020-2021

Projected earmarked reserves 

Balance

01/04/2020

£m

Added in 

budget

£m

Used in

budget

£m

Anticipated

to be used

£m

Balance

31/03/2021

£m

Transformation including Major Projects 1.385 0.000 0.000 (0.708) 0.677

Renewals 0.967 0.000 (0.049) 0.000 0.918

Insurance 0.080 0.000 (0.020) 0.000 0.060

Losses 0.862 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.862

Budget contingency includes* 1.698 0.039 (0.061) (0.368) 1.308

Other earmarked reserves 0.324 0.000 (0.057) 0.000 0.267

Ring-fenced 0.548 0.000 (0.064) 0.000 0.484

5.864 0.039 (0.251) (1.076) 4.576

*Additional Business Rates and volatility 0.783 0.398 (0.188) 0.000 0.993

*Pension Fund volatility 0.000 0.586 0.000 0.000 0.586

Projected reserves 6.647 1.023 (0.439) (1.076) 6.155

Page 53

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 5



 
 

 
Capital Strategy 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Version Control: 

Document Name: Capital Strategy 

Version: 20012020.1 

Author: Director of Resources 

Approved by: Full Council 

Date Approved: February 2020 

Review Date: February 2021 

Page 54

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 5



 
 Page 1  

Capital Strategy 

 
Introduction 
 
The purpose of this document is to show how the Capital Strategy determines the 
process for retaining and maintaining properties in the asset base and how capital 
projects are included in the Capital Programme in a rational and objective manner 
which maximises the contribution of the Capital Programme towards the achievement 
of the Council’s Priorities. 
 
In terms of volume, the majority of the Council’s assets are the Housing Revenue 
Account dwellings.  Day to day maintenance and any plans for improvements are 
incorporated into the Housing Revenue Account Business Plan.  This covers a 30-
year period and is updated annually.  
 
Council Vision and Priorities 
 
Our vision is for our Borough to be a great place to live, work and visit. 
 
The thematic key priorities for the next four years are: 
 
1. Enabling our residents to live happy, healthy, productive lives. 

Putting people at the centre of all that we do is a key priority for the Council. We 
will do this by helping them to have the best start in life, enjoy healthy and active 
lifestyles, and have opportunities to improve their well-being by building strong 
communities. We will actively encourage people to work with us to design 
activities that meet their needs. We will work with our communities so that people 
can enjoy good health and live in a safe environment where they can be happy 
and reach their full potential. 

 
2. Creating vibrant, safe and welcoming places where people want to live. 

Our Borough is a great place to live, work and have fun. There is an abundance 
of natural beauty and heritage but there is also an opportunity to offer people 
more. We want a varied housing offer to retain our residents and attract new 
people to settle here. We want to build on existing strengths and encourage more 
people to visit the town centres in Barrow and Dalton by making them more 
vibrant so that residents and visitors enjoy a positive and memorable experience. 
We want to protect our natural environment. 

 
3. Supporting our economy to thrive and benefit all our residents. 

Barrow’s manufacturing heritage and its pivotal role in the defence industry is a 
source of local pride and tradition. Our world-class manufacturing expertise is 
recognised worldwide, however to enable inclusive growth we will seek to 
diversify our economy to secure opportunities for our residents by supporting 
other key industries including the growing renewable energy sector. In particular, 
we have the opportunity to secure continued investment in the Borough and 
ensure our residents have the skills and services to allow them to benefit from the 
growing economy.  We will deliver our ambitions through effective joint working 
with public and private sector partners, by offering a clear policy framework, 

Page 55

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 5



 
 Page 2  

proactive steps to promote the role and opportunities within the Borough and by 
securing additional public and private investment. 

 
These priorities will be used as the basis for all future business planning and to direct 
the activity of any spare capacity and resources.  Given the constraints on Council 
income it is necessary to think and act more like a business, drive efficiencies from 
services, generate more income and support innovation and best practice within 
services. 
 
The priorities do not feature equally in the Capital Strategy because some objectives 
incur predominately ongoing revenue costs. 
 
The Capital Programme is related to the Council’s priorities as follows: 
 

Council Priority Capital Programme elements 

People 
Public housing 
Private housing 
Housing market renewal 

Place 
Public buildings 
Industrial and commercial properties 
Community initiatives 

Prosperity 
Private housing 
Housing market renewal 
Industrial and commercial properties 

 
Resource Allocation 
 
The Government introduced a new system for the management of capital finance in 
2004-2005 contained in The Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) 
Regulations (2003), which became operative from 1st April 2004.  The Act sets out a 
new financial power for local authorities to use unsupported prudential borrowing for 
capital investment provided that the Council can afford the revenue consequences of 
any proposed borrowing.   The key objectives of the prudential system are to ensure, 
within a clear framework, that the capital investment plans of local authorities are 
affordable, prudent and sustainable.  Under the regulations local authorities have 
been given the freedom to determine the amount of external borrowing they are 
prepared to undertake when considering their own capital spending and financing 
decisions.  

  
At the outset of each Capital Programme planning cycle, the level of resources 
available to fund the Programme is reassessed in light of the most recent 
information.  The current Programme is then reviewed to establish the level of 
resources needed to fund the committed Programme. This information is then used 
to establish the resources available to fund new schemes.  
 
It is the Council’s policy to maximise capital receipts through a review of existing 
property use.  A rigorous approach has been adopted to the identification and 
disposal of surplus assets that are no longer required to meet the Priorities of the 

Page 56

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 5



 
 Page 3  

Council.  The Council views this as the most cost effective way to finance the Capital 
Programme and minimises the risks to the core revenue budget.  
 

 The Council has been very successful at securing external funding from the 
Government and private sources, to achieve the delivery of its Capital Programme.  
The Council has been able to fund a significant proportion of its Capital Programme 
from external funding in previous years.  

 
For externally funded projects, the Council’s policy is not to include schemes in the 
overall Programme until such time as the sources of funding have been confirmed.  
This is specifically to address issues of slippage within the Programme and to avoid 
the Council entering into an open-ended commitment which then deprives other 
important schemes of resources.  However, it is vital that when such schemes have 
secured sufficient partner funding, that the Council has the capability to fund its share 
of the overall scheme cost and can add such schemes to the Programme if it desires. 
 
Getting value for money is a priority for the Council and the Capital Programme 
should provide high quality, value for money public services.  The Council recognises 
that best value is based on whole life costs and therefore the on-going revenue 
implications of capital spend are identified when bids for capital resources are 
assessed and when schemes are approved; when a new capital project is proposed 
any impact on revenue expenditure is anticipated and costed.  These revenue costs 
are used to inform the revenue budget planning process and are considered 
alongside other priorities in the revenue budget when the overall budget is set. 
  

 In order to ensure that resources available for capital investment are used efficiently 
and effectively, the Council prioritises all capital projects in line with its Priorities, 
available resources and longer term revenue savings.  This is achieved by the 
submission of bids for capital resources being appraised by the Capital Programme 
Group which includes the Chief Executive and Director of Resources, for their 
consideration and comment.  There is an Appraisal Request form and Bid Guidance 
Notes for managers to use.  This process includes all elements of Capital Investment 
apart from planned housing maintenance which is dealt with by the Housing 
Management Forum.  

 
 The resulting Capital Programme is then reported to the Executive Committee for 

recommendation to Council for approval.  
 
Managing and Monitoring the Capital Programme 

 
 Detailed management, monitoring and review in terms of both the delivery of 

outcomes, priorities and financial performance are the responsibility of the Capital 
Programme Group, working in conjunction with the responsible manager.  Progress 
reports incorporating any recommended variations to the Programme are presented 
to the Capital Programme Group and the Executive Committee.  Any ‘learning’ 
arising from the monitoring/review process is used to inform the strategy on an 
ongoing basis.  The Council’s Financial Regulations and Contract Standing Orders 
stipulate how the financial aspects of the Capital Programme and each capital 
scheme should be managed and the Capital Programme Group ensures compliance 

Page 57

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 5



 
 Page 4  

with these requirements.  The role of the Capital Programme Group is currently 
under review. 

  
The Council is committed to consulting with the community, its partners and service 
users on the key issues affecting the quality of life in the Borough.  It has always 
been important to ensure that resources and services are designed, delivered and 
improved to meet the changing needs and expectations of our community, our 
partners and our service users.  To achieve this commitment the Council consults 
and involves the community on any major or controversial capital schemes and 
makes its policies, decisions and services accessible to comment from residents, 
businesses, agencies and major partners.  
 
Reviewing the Capital Strategy 
 
The Capital Strategy is reviewed annually to ensure it remains valid.  The Council 
reviews the allocation of its Capital Resources on an annual basis to ensure that its 
Programme of investment is in line with the actual resources available to support its 
spending needs and priorities.  
 
Summary 
 
The Council will continue to prioritise its capital spending in line with its Priorities and 
other criteria.  The Council will annually review its approach to capital expenditure 
having regard to outcomes of service reviews, inspections, condition surveys, and 
outcomes of the Capital Programme.  The Capital Programme for 2019-2020 to 2022-
2023 is shown at Appendix 1. 
 

Page 58

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 5



 
 Page 5  

Appendix 1 
 

Capital Programme 2019-2023

 2019-2020  2020-2021  2021-2022  2022-2023 

 £  £  £  £ 

Capitalised planned maintenance 2,319,500    2,031,000    2,031,000    2,031,000    

Total Investment in public housing 2,319,500    2,031,000    2,031,000    2,031,000    

Disabled facilities grants 1,000,000    1,000,000    1,000,000    1,000,000    

Total Investment in private housing 1,000,000    1,000,000    1,000,000    1,000,000    

Rawlinson Street Phase 2 14,653          330,000       -                -                

North Central  Renewal - Greengate Street 10,000          90,000          -                -                

Barrow Island Environmental Improvements 7,273            -                -                -                

Private Sector Housing -                100,000       563,600       -                

Investment in Housing Market Renewal 31,926          520,000       563,600       -                

Total Investment in housing 3,351,426    3,551,000    3,594,600    3,031,000    

Dock Museum 12,311          -                -                -                

Public Buildings Investment Fund 150,000       150,000       150,000       150,000       

Total Investment in Public Buildings 162,311       150,000       150,000       150,000       

Barrow Island Growth Zone 117,660       -                -                -                

Waterfront Gateway Business Centre Plot 1 Harding Rise 3,596,567    88,490          -                -                

Property Acquisition 50,000          -                -                -                

Marina Village -                -                -                -                

Industrial & Commercial Property Investment Fund -                -                974,892       -                

Total Industrial & Commercial  Properties 3,764,227    88,490          974,892       -                

Town Centre Shop Front Grants 5,000            -                -                -                

IT Equipment & Development 154,511       60,000          60,000          60,000          

Housing Management System 65,703          -                -                -                

Total Investment in other public assets 225,214       60,000          60,000          60,000          

Coastal Protection (pending Coastal Survey report) 126,888       -                -                -                

Cavendish Park 19,740          -                -                -                

Coastal Communities - Art Gene 11,740          -                -                -                

Total Investment in Community Initiatives 158,368       -                -                -                

Asset Investment Fund 100,000       150,000       150,000       150,000       

Total 7,761,546    3,999,490    4,929,492    3,391,000    

 Funding of Capital Programme: 

DCLG Grant 1,011,740    1,000,000    1,000,000    1,000,000    

ERDF 2,157,944    53,100          -                -                

DEFRA Environment Agency 126,888       -                -                -                

Private Contributions 19,740          -                -                -                

HRA MRR 2,319,500    2,031,000    2,031,000    2,031,000    

Contributions from HRA 65,703          -                -                -                

Cluster of Empty Homes Loan Repayments 17,273          190,000       163,600       -                

Usable Capital Receipts 2,042,758    725,390       1,734,892    360,000       

Total 7,761,546    3,999,490    4,929,492    3,391,000    

 

Page 59

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 5



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Treasury Management Strategy 

Statement 2020-2021 

 
 
 
 
 

Version Control: 

Document Name: Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2020-2021 

Version: 20012020.1 

Author: Director of Resources 

Approved by: Full Council 

Date Approved: February 2020 

Review Date: February 2021 

Page 60

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 5



 
Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2020-2021 
 
 

 

 
1 INTRODUCTION 

 
1.1  Background 
 
The Council is required to operate a balanced budget, which broadly means that 
cash raised during the year will meet cash expenditure.  Part of the treasury 
management operation is to ensure that this cash flow is adequately planned, with 
cash being available when it is needed.  Surplus monies are invested in low risk 
counterparties or instruments commensurate with the Council’s low risk appetite, 
providing adequate liquidity initially before considering investment return. 
 
The second main function of the treasury management service is the funding of the 
Council’s capital plans.  These capital plans provide a guide to the borrowing need of 
the Council, essentially the longer term cash flow planning to ensure that the Council 
can meet its capital spending obligations.  This management of longer term cash 
may involve arranging long or short term loans, or using longer term cash flow 
surpluses.  On occasion any debt previously drawn may be restructured to meet 
Council risk or cost objectives.  
 
CIPFA defines treasury management as: 

 
“The management of the local authority’s investments and cash flows, its 
banking, money market and capital market transactions; the effective control of 
the risks associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance 
consistent with those risks.” 

 
1.2  Reporting requirements 
 
The Council is required to receive and approve, as a minimum, three main reports 
each year, which incorporate a variety of polices, estimates and actuals.   
 
Prudential and treasury indicators and treasury strategy (this report) - The first, 
and most important report covers: 
 

 the capital plans (including prudential indicators); 
 a minimum revenue provision (MRP) policy (how residual capital expenditure is 

charged to revenue over time); 
 the treasury management strategy (how the investments and borrowings are to 

be organised) including treasury indicators; and  
 an investment strategy (the parameters on how investments are to be 

managed). 
 
A treasury management monitoring report – This will update members with the 
progress of the capital position, amending prudential indicators as necessary, and 
whether the treasury strategy is meeting the strategy or whether any policies require 
revision.  This is incorporated into the quarterly finance reports. 
 

Page 61

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 5



 
Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2020-2021 
 
 

 

An annual treasury report – This provides details of a selection of actual prudential 
and treasury indicators and actual treasury operations compared to the estimates 
within the strategy. 
 
Scrutiny - The above reports are required to be adequately scrutinised before being 
recommended to Full Council by the Executive Committee. 
 
Capital Strategy - in December 2017, CIPFA issued revised Prudential and 
Treasury Management Codes.  As from 2019-2020, all local authorities are required 
to prepare an additional report, a Capital Strategy report, which is intended to 
provide the following: 
 

• a high-level overview of how capital expenditure, capital financing and 
treasury management activity contribute to the provision of services; 

• an overview of how the associated risk is managed; and 
• the implications for future financial sustainability. 

 
The aim of the report is to ensure that all elected members on the Full Council fully 
understand the overall strategy, governance procedures and risk appetite entailed by 
this Strategy. 
  
The Capital Strategy includes capital expenditure, investments and liabilities and 
treasury management in sufficient detail to allow all members to understand how 
stewardship, value for money, prudence, sustainability and affordability will be 
secured. 
 
1.3  Treasury Management Strategy for 2020-2021 
 
The strategy for 2020-2021 covers two main areas: 
 
Capital issues 

 the capital plans and the prudential indicators; 
 the minimum revenue provision (MRP) strategy. 
 

Treasury management issues 
 the current treasury position; 
 treasury indicators which limit the treasury risk and activities of the Council; 
 prospects for interest rates; 
 the borrowing strategy; 
 policy on borrowing in advance of need; 
 debt rescheduling; 
 the investment strategy; 
 creditworthiness policy; and 
 policy on use of external service providers. 

 
These elements cover the requirements of the Local Government Act 2003, the 
CIPFA Prudential Code, MHCLG MRP Guidance, the CIPFA Treasury Management 
Code and  MHCLG Investment Guidance. 

Page 62

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 5



 
Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2020-2021 
 
 

 

1.4 Treasury management consultants 
 
The Council uses Link Asset Services, Treasury Solutions as its external treasury 
management advisors; they also provide member training. 
 
The Council recognises that responsibility for treasury management decisions 
remains with the organisation at all times and will ensure that undue reliance is not 
placed upon our external service providers.  
 
It also recognises that there is value in employing external providers of treasury 
management services in order to acquire access to specialist skills and resources. 
The Council will ensure that the terms of their appointment and the methods by 
which their value will be assessed are properly agreed and documented, and 
subjected to regular review.  
 
2 THE CAPITAL PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 2019-2020 to 2021-2022 
 
The Council’s capital expenditure plans are the key driver of treasury management 
activity.  The output of the capital expenditure plans is reflected in prudential 
indicators, which are designed to assist members’ overview and confirm capital 
expenditure plans. 

 
2.1  Capital expenditure 
 
This prudential indicator is a summary of the Council’s capital expenditure plans, 
both those agreed previously, and those forming part of this budget cycle.  The table 
below summarises the above capital expenditure plans and how these plans are 
being financed by capital or revenue resources.  Any shortfall of resources would 
result in a funding borrowing need:  
 

2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23

Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate

£m £m £m £m

HRA 2.384 2.031 2.031 2.031

General Fund 5.377 1.968 2.898 1.360

Total 7.761 3.999 4.929 3.391

Financed by:

Capital receipts 2.060 0.915 1.898 0.360

Capital grants 3.316 1.053 1.000 1.000

Reserves 2.385 2.031 2.031 2.031

Total 7.761 3.999 4.929 3.391

Net financing need for the year 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

Capital expenditure

 
 
2.2  The Council’s borrowing need (the Capital Financing Requirement) 
 
The second prudential indicator is the Council’s Capital Financing Requirement 
(CFR).  The CFR is simply the total historic outstanding capital expenditure which 

Page 63

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 5



 
Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2020-2021 
 
 

 

has not yet been paid for from either revenue or capital resources.  It is essentially a 
measure of the Council’s underlying borrowing need.  Any capital expenditure above, 
which has not immediately been paid for, will increase the CFR.  The CFR does not 
increase indefinitely, as the minimum revenue provision (MRP) is a statutory annual 
revenue charge which broadly reduces the borrowing need in line with each assets 
life.  The Council is asked to approve the CFR projections below: 
 

2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23

Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate

£m £m £m £m

HRA 18.023 17.207 16.391 15.574

General Fund 19.654 19.139 18.618 18.093

Total 37.677 36.346 35.009 33.667

Movement (1.327) (1.331) (1.337) (1.342)

Represented by:

MRP/VRP & other financing movements (1.327) (1.331) (1.337) (1.342)

Capital financing requirement

 
 
2.3 Core funds and expected investment balances  
 
The application of resources (capital receipts, reserves etc.) to either finance capital 
expenditure or other budget decisions to support the revenue budget will have an 
ongoing impact on investments unless resources are supplemented each year from 
new sources (asset sales etc.).  Detailed below are estimates of the year-end 
balances for each resource and anticipated day-to-day cash flow balances. 
 

2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23

Actual Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate

£m £m £m £m £m

Fund balances/reserves 15.73 14.84 14.76 14.38 14.17

Capital receipts 2.67 0.63 0.00 0.00 0.00

Provisions 0.58 0.43 0.28 0.13 0.00

Other; capital grants unapplied 2.65 2.15 1.65 1.15 0.65

Total core funds 21.63 18.05 16.69 15.66 14.82

External investments 19.00 16.00 15.00 14.00 13.00

Working capital 1.10 1.05 0.82 1.13 1.62

Under/(over) borrowing 1.53 1.20 0.87 0.53 0.19

Expected investments 21.63 18.25 16.69 15.66 14.81

Year End Resources

 
 
3 BORROWING 

 
The capital expenditure plans set out in Section 2 provide details of the service 
activity of the Council.   
 
The treasury management function ensures that the Council’s cash is organised in 
accordance with the the relevant professional codes, so that sufficient cash is 
available to meet this service activity.  This will involve both the organisation of the 
cash flow and, where capital plans require, the organisation of approporiate 

Page 64

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 5



 
Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2020-2021 
 
 

 

borrowing facilities.  The strategy covers the relevant treasury/prudential indicators, 
the current and projected debt positions and the annual investment strategy. 
 
3.1  Current portfolio position 
 
The Council’s treasury portfolio position at 31 March 2019, with forward projections 
is summarised below. The table shows the actual external debt (the treasury 
management operations), against the underlying capital borrowing need (the Capital 
Financing Requirement - CFR), highlighting any over or under borrowing.  
 

2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23

Actual Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate

£m £m £m £m £m

At 1st April 38.479 37.479 36.479 35.479 34.479
Expected change (1.000) (1.000) (1.000) (1.000) (1.000)
Gross debt at 31st March 37.479 36.479 35.479 34.479 33.479

Capital financing requirement 39.004 37.677 36.346 35.009 33.667
Under/(over) borrowed 1.525 1.198 0.867 0.530 0.188

External debt

 
 
Within the prudential indicators there are a number of key indicators to ensure that 
the Council operates its activities within well-defined limits.  One of these is that the 
Council needs to ensure that its gross debt does not, except in the short term, 
exceed the total of the CFR in the preceding year plus the estimates of any 
additional CFR for 2020-21 and the following two financial years.  This allows some 
flexibility for limited early borrowing for future years, but ensures that borrowing is not 
undertaken for revenue purposes. 
 
The Director of Resources reports that the Council complied with this prudential 
indicator in the current year and does not envisage difficulties for the future.  This 
view takes into account current commitments, existing plans, and the proposals in 
this budget report.  
 
3.2  Treasury Indicators: limits to borrowing activity 
 
The operational boundary - this is the limit beyond which external debt is not 
normally expected to exceed.  In most cases, this would be a similar figure to the 
CFR, but may be lower or higher depending on the levels of actual debt. 
 

2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23

Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate

£m £m £m £m

Total 41 40 40 39

Operational boundary

 
 
The authorised limit for external debt - a further key prudential indicator 
represents a control on the maximum level of borrowing.  This represents a limit 
beyond which external debt is prohibited, and this limit needs to be set or revised by 
the full Council.  It reflects the level of external debt which, while not desired, could 
be afforded in the short term, but is not sustainable in the longer term: 

Page 65

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 5



 
Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2020-2021 
 
 

 

 
1. This is the statutory limit determined under section 3 (1) of the Local 

Government Act 2003. The Government retains an option to control either the 
total of all councils’ plans, or those of a specific council, although this power 
has not yet been exercised. 

 
2. The Council is asked to approve the following authorised limit: 

 

2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23

Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate

£m £m £m £m

Total 55 55 55 54

Authorised limit

 
 
Separately, the Council is also limited to a maximum HRA CFR through the HRA 
self-financing regime.  This limit is currently: 
 

2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23

Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate

£m £m £m £m

HRA debt cap 36.367 36.367 36.367 36.367

HRA CFR 18.023 17.207 16.391 15.574

HRA headroom 18.344 19.160 19.976 20.793

HRA existing debt 24.099 23.099 22.099 21.099

HRA drawdown gap 12.268 13.268 14.268 15.268

HRA debt limit

 
 
In October 2018, Government announced a policy change of abolition of the HRA 
debt cap.  The Chancellor announced in the Budget that the applicable date was 29 
October 2018. 
 
3.3  Borrowing strategy  
 
The Council is currently maintaining an under-borrowed position.  This means that 
the capital borrowing need (the Capital Financing Requirement), has not been fully 
funded with loan debt as cash supporting the Council’s reserves, balances and cash 
flow has been used as a temporary measure.  This strategy is prudent as investment 
returns are low and counterparty risk is relatively high. 
 
Against this background and the risks within the economic forecast, caution will be 
adopted with the 2020-2021 treasury operations.  The Director of Resources will 
monitor interest rates in financial markets and adopt a pragmatic approach to 
changing circumstances: 

 
 if it was felt that there was a significant risk of a sharp FALL in long and short 

term rates (e.g. due to a marked increase of risks around relapse into 
recession or of risks of deflation), then long term borrowings will be 
postponed, and potential rescheduling from fixed rate funding into short term 
borrowing will be considered. 

Page 66

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 5



 
Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2020-2021 
 
 

 

 if it was felt that there was a significant risk of a much sharper RISE in long 
and short term rates than that currently forecast, perhaps arising from a 
greater than expected increase in world economic activity or a sudden 
increase in inflation risks, then the portfolio position will be re-appraised with 
the likely action that fixed rate funding will be drawn whilst interest rates were 
still relatively cheap. 

 
Any decisions will be reported to the appropriate decision making body at the next 
available opportunity. 
 
The Council will maintain the current prudent borrowing strategy to support the 
approach of minimising counterparty risk. 
 
3.4 Policy on borrowing in advance of need  
 
The Council will not borrow more than or in advance of its needs purely in order to 
profit from the investment of the extra sums borrowed. Any decision to borrow in 
advance will be within forward approved Capital Financing Requirement estimates, 
and will be considered carefully to ensure that value for money can be demonstrated 
and that the Council can ensure the security of such funds.  
 
Risks associated with any borrowing in advance activity will be subject to prior 
appraisal and subsequent reporting. 
 
3.5  Debt rescheduling 
 
As short term borrowing rates will be considerably cheaper than longer term fixed 
interest rates, there may be potential opportunities to generate savings by switching 
from long term debt to short term debt.  However, these savings will need to be 
considered in the light of the current treasury position and the size of the cost of debt 
repayment (premiums incurred).  
 
The reasons for any rescheduling to take place will include:  
 

 the generation of cash savings and/or discounted cash flow savings; 
 helping to fulfil the treasury strategy; 
 enhance the balance of the portfolio (amend the maturity profile and/or the 

balance of volatility). 
 
Consideration will also be given to identify if there is any residual potential for making 
savings by running down investment balances to repay debt prematurely as short 
term rates on investments are likely to be lower than rates paid on current debt.   
 
All rescheduling will be reported to the Executive Committee, at the earliest meeting 
following its action. 
 
 
 

Page 67

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 5



 
Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2020-2021 
 
 

 

4 ANNUAL INVESTMENT STRATEGY 
  
4.1  Investment policy 
 
The Council’s investment policy has regard to the MHCLG’s Guidance on Local 
Government Investments (“the Guidance”) and the  revised CIPFA Treasury 
Management in Public Services Code of Practice and Cross Sectoral Guidance 
Notes 2017 (“the CIPFA TM Code”).  The Council’s investment priorities will be 
security first, liquidity second, then return. 
 
In accordance with the above guidance from the MHCLG and CIPFA, and in order to 
minimise the risk to investments, the Council applies minimum acceptable credit 
criteria in order to generate a list of highly creditworthy counterparties which also 
enables diversification and thus avoidance of concentration risk. The key ratings 
used to monitor counterparties are the Short Term and Long Term ratings.   
 
Ratings will not be the sole determinant of the quality of an institution; it is important 
to continually assess and monitor the financial sector on both a micro and macro 
basis and in relation to the economic and political environments in which institutions 
operate. The assessment will also take account of information that reflects the 
opinion of the markets. To achieve this consideration the Council will engage with its 
advisors to maintain a monitor on market pricing such as “credit default swaps” and 
overlay that information on top of the credit ratings.  
 
Other information sources used will include the financial press, share price and other 
such information pertaining to the banking sector in order to establish the most 
robust scrutiny process on the suitability of potential investment counterparties. 
 
Investment instruments identified for use in the financial year are listed in Section 6 
under the ‘specified’ and ‘non-specified’ investments categories. Counterparty limits 
will be as set through the Council’s treasury management practices – schedules. 
 
4.2  Creditworthiness policy  
 
The primary principle governing the Council’s investment criteria is the security of its 
investments, although the yield or return on the investment is also a key 
consideration.  After this main principle, the Council will ensure that: 
 

 it maintains a policy covering both the categories of investment types it 
will invest in, criteria for choosing investment counterparties with 
adequate security, and monitoring their security.  This is set out in the 
specified and non-specified investment sections below; and 

 it has sufficient liquidity in its investments.  For this purpose it will set 
out procedures for determining the maximum periods for which funds 
may prudently be committed.  These procedures also apply to the 
Council’s prudential indicator covering the maximum principal sums 
invested.   

 

Page 68

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 5



 
Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2020-2021 
 
 

 

The Director of Resources will maintain a counterparty list in compliance with the 
following criteria and will revise the criteria and submit them to Council for approval 
as necessary.  These criteria are separate to that which determines which types of 
investment instrument are either specified or non-specified as it provides an overall 
pool of counterparties considered high quality which the Council may use, rather 
than defining what types of investment instruments are to be used.   
 
The minimum rating criteria uses the lowest common denominator method of 
selecting counterparties and applying limits.  This means that the application of the 
Council’s minimum criteria will apply to the lowest available rating for any institution.  
For instance, if an institution is rated by two agencies, one meets the Council’s 
criteria, the other does not, then the institution will fall outside the lending criteria.  
Credit rating information is supplied by Sector, our treasury consultants, on all active 
counterparties that comply with the criteria below.  Any counterparty failing to meet 
the criteria would be omitted from the counterparty (dealing) list.  Any rating 
changes, rating watches (notification of a likely change), rating outlooks (notification 
of a possible longer term change) are provided to officers almost immediately after 
they occur and this information is considered before dealing.  For instance, a 
negative rating watch applying to a counterparty at the minimum Council criteria will 
be suspended from use, with all others being reviewed in light of market conditions.  
 
The criteria for providing a pool of high quality investment counterparties (both 
specified and non-specified investments) is: 
 

 Banks 1 - good credit quality – the Council will only use banks which: 
i. are UK banks; and/or 
ii. are non-UK and domiciled in a country which has a minimum 

sovereign long term rating of AA- 
and have, as a minimum, the following Fitch, Moody’s and Standard 
and Poor credit ratings (where rated): 

i. Short term – F1, P-1,A-1 
ii. Long term – AA-, Aa3, AA- 

 Banks 2 – Part nationalised UK banks – Lloyds Banking Group and 
Royal Bank of Scotland. These banks can be included if they continue 
to be part nationalised or they meet the ratings in Banks 1 above. 

 Banks 3 – The Council’s own banker for transactional purposes if the 
bank falls below the above criteria, although in this case balances will 
be minimised in both monetary size and time. 

 Building societies.  The Council will use all societies which: 
i. meet the ratings for banks outlined above; 
ii. Have assets in excess of £500 million; 

or meet both criteria. 

 Money market funds 

 UK Government; including gilts and the Debt Management Accounts 
Deposit Facility (DMADF) 

 Local authorities and parish councils 
 

Page 69

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 5



 
Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2020-2021 
 
 

 

Country and sector considerations - Due care will be taken to consider the 
country, group and sector exposure of the Council’s investments.  In part, the 
country selection will be chosen by the credit rating of the sovereign state in Banks 1 
above.  In addition: 
 

 no more than 10% will be placed with any non-UK country at any time; 

 limits in place above will apply to a group of companies; 

 sector limits will be monitored regularly for appropriateness. 
 
Use of additional information other than credit ratings - Additional requirements 
under the Code require the Council to supplement credit rating information.  Whilst 
the above criteria relies primarily on the application of credit ratings to provide a pool 
of appropriate counterparties for officers to use, additional operational market 
information will be applied before making any specific investment decision from the 
agreed pool of counterparties.  This additional market information (for example 
Credit Default Swaps, negative rating watches/outlooks) will be applied to compare 
the relative security of differing investment counterparties. 
 
Time and monetary limits applying to investments - The time and monetary limits 
for institutions on the Council’s counterparty list are set out in Section 6. 
 
4.3  Country limits 
 
The Council has determined that it will only use approved counterparties from 
countries with a minimum sovereign credit rating of AA- from Fitch.  This list will be 
added to, or deducted from, by officers should ratings change in accordance with this 
policy.  UK counterparties are preferred and may represent 100% of investments. 
 
4.4  Investment strategy 
 
In-house funds - Investments will be made with reference to the core balance and 
cash flow requirements and the outlook for short-term interest rates (i.e. rates for 
investments up to 12 months).    
 
Investment returns expectations - Bank Rate is forecast to increase steadily but 
slowly over the next few years to reach 1.25% by quarter 1 of 2023.  The revenue 
budget for 2020-2021 is based on achieving a weighted average return of 0.95%. 
 
Investment treasury indicator and limit - total principal funds invested for greater 
than 365 days. These limits are set with regard to the Council’s liquidity requirements 
and to reduce the need for early sale of an investment, and are based on the 
availability of funds after each year-end. 
 
The Council is asked to approve the treasury indicator and limit: 
 

2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23

£m £m £m £m

Maximum principal sums invested >364 & 365 days 1 1 1 1  

Page 70

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 5



 
Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2020-2021 
 
 

 

There are no current investments as at 27 January 2020 in excess of 1 year. 
 
For its cash flow generated balances, the Council will seek to utilise its overnight 
deposit account in order to benefit from the compounding of interest. 
 
4.5  Investment risk benchmarking 
 
These benchmarks are simple guides to maximum risk, so they may be breached 
from time to time, depending on movements in interest rates and counterparty 
criteria.  The purpose of the benchmark is that officers will monitor the current and 
trend position and amend the operational strategy to manage risk as conditions 
change.   
 
Security - The Council’s maximum security risk benchmark for the current portfolio, 
when compared to these historic default tables, is: 
 

 0.1% historic risk of default when compared to the whole portfolio. 
 
Liquidity – in respect of this area the Council seeks to maintain: 
 

 Liquid short term deposits of at least £2m available with a week’s notice. 

 Weighted average life benchmark is expected to be 0.15 years, with a 
maximum of 0.75 years. 

 
Yield - local measures of yield benchmark: 
 

 Investments – internal returns above the 7 day LIBID rate 
 
4.6  End of year investment report 
 
At the end of the financial year, the Council will report on its investment activity as 
part of its Annual Treasury Report.  
 
5 THE CAPITAL PRUDENTIAL AND TREASURY INDICATORS 2019-2020 – 

2022-2023 AND MRP STATEMENT 
 
5.1 Minimum revenue provision (MRP) policy statement 
 
The Council is required to pay off an element of the accumulated General Fund 
capital spend each year (the CFR) through a revenue charge (the minimum revenue 
provision - MRP), although it is also allowed to undertake additional voluntary 
payments if required (voluntary revenue provision - VRP).   
 
MHCLG regulations have been issued which require the full Council to approve an 
MRP Statement in advance of each year.  A variety of options are provided to 
councils, so long as there is a prudent provision.  The Council is recommended to 
approve the following MRP Statement. 

 

Page 71

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 5



 
Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2020-2021 
 
 

 

For capital expenditure incurred before 1 April 2008 or which in the future will be 
Supported Capital Expenditure, the MRP policy will be: 

 

 The MRP charge in relation to capital expenditure incurred prior to 1 April 
2008 where the expenditure was funded by either supported or unsupported 
borrowing will be 1/50th of the balance remaining at the 31st March 2016. 

 
From 1 April 2008 for all unsupported borrowing the MRP policy will be: 

 

 Asset life method – MRP will be based on the estimated life of the assets, in 
accordance with the proposed regulations (this option must be applied for any 
expenditure capitalised under a Capitalisation Direction) (option 3). 

 
These options provide for a reduction in the borrowing need over approximately the 
asset’s life.  

 
There is no requirement on the HRA to make a minimum revenue provision but there 
is a requirement for a charge for depreciation to be made (although there are 
transitional arrangements in place).  The HRA Business Plan under self-financing 
includes a voluntary revenue provision to repay the debt on the account. 

 
5.2  Affordability prudential indicators 
 
The previous sections cover the overall capital and control of borrowing prudential 
indicators, but within this framework prudential indicators are required to assess the 
affordability of the capital investment plans.   These provide an indication of the 
impact of the capital investment plans on the Council’s overall finances.  The Council 
is asked to approve the following indicators: 
 
5.3  Ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream 
 
This indicator identifies the trend in the cost of capital (borrowing and other long term 
obligation costs net of investment income) against the net revenue stream. 
 

2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23

Actual Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate

HRA 15% 15% 15% 15% 15%

General Fund 8% 7% 8% 9% 9%

Ratio

 
 
The estimates of financing costs include current and known commitments. 
 
5.4 Maturity structure of borrowing 
 
These gross limits are set to reduce the Council’s exposure to large fixed rate sums 
falling due for refinancing, and are required for upper and lower limits.  The Council 
is asked to approve the following treasury indicators and limits: 
 

Page 72

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 5



 
Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2020-2021 
 
 

 

Maturity structure of fixed rate borrowing Lower Upper

Under 12 months 0% 20%

12 months to 1 year 0% 20%

2 years to 5 years 0% 50%

5 years to 10 years 0% 75%

10 years and above 0% 100%  
 

Maturity structure of variable rate borrowing Lower Upper

Under 12 months 0% 30%

12 months to 1 year 0% 30%

2 years to 5 years 0% 30%

5 years to 10 years 0% 30%

10 years and above 0% 30%  
 

5.5 Control of interest rate exposure 
 
Upper limits on variable interest rate exposure; this identifies a maximum limit for 
variable interest rates based upon the debt position net of investments  
 
Upper limits on fixed interest rate exposure; this is similar to the previous indicator 
and covers a maximum limit on fixed interest rates. 
 

2019-20 2020-21 2020-21 2021-22

Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate

£m £m £m £m

Upper limit for fixed interest rate exposure on debt 41 40 40 39

Upper limit for variable interest rate exposure on debt 13 12 12 12

Interest rate exposures

 
 
6 TREASURY MANAGEMENT PRACTICE (TMP1) – Credit and Counterparty 

Risk Management 
 
Specified investments – These investments are sterling investments of not more 
than one-year maturity, or those which could be for a longer period but where the 
Council has the right to be repaid within 12 months if it wishes.  These are 
considered low risk assets where the possibility of loss of principal or investment 
income is small.  These would include sterling investments which would not be 
defined as capital expenditure with: 
 
1. The UK Government (such as the Debt Management Account deposit facility, UK 

treasury bills or a gilt with less than one year to maturity). 
 
2. A local authority, parish council or community council. 
 
3. Pooled investment vehicles (such as money market funds) that have been 

awarded a high credit rating by a credit rating agency. For category 4 this covers 
pooled investment vehicles, such as money market funds, rated F1, P-1, A-1 by 
Standard and Poor’s, Moody’s or Fitch rating agencies. 

Page 73

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 5



 
Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2020-2021 
 
 

 

 
4. A body that is considered of a high credit quality (such as a bank or building 

society.  For category 5 this covers bodies with a minimum short term rating of 
F1, P-1, A-1 (or the equivalent) as rated by Standard and Poor’s, Moody’s or 
Fitch rating agencies.   

 
Within these bodies, and in accordance with the Code, the Council has set additional 
criteria to set the time and amount of monies which will be invested in these bodies: 
 

  
Fitch long term rating 

or equivalent 
Time limit 

Money 
limit 

Limit 1: long term AA- 5 years £2m 

Limit 2: short term Council’s 
own bank 

F1 1 year £10m 

Limit 3: short term banks & 
building societies 

F1 or institution with 
£500m+ of assets 

1 year £4m 

Other institutions limit - 1 year £5m 

DMADF AAA 1 year Unlimited 

Local authorities - 1 year £5m 

 
Non-specified investments – are any other type of investment (i.e. not defined as 
specified above).  The identification and rationale supporting the selection of these 
other investments and the maximum limits to be applied are set out in the following 
table.   
 
Non specified investments would include any sterling investments with: 
 

 Non Specified Investment Category Limit (£ or %) 

a.  

Gilt edged securities with a maturity of greater than one 
year.  These are Government bonds and so provide the 
highest security of interest and the repayment of principal 
on maturity. The value of the bond may rise or fall before 
maturity and losses may accrue if the bond is sold before 
maturity. 

£5m 
5 years 

b.  The Council’s own banker - HSBC £10m 

c.  

Building societies not meeting the basic security 
requirements under the specified investments.  The 
operation of some building societies does not require a 
credit rating, although in every other respect the security of 
the society would match similarly sized societies with 
ratings.  The Council may use such building societies 
which have a minimum asset size of £500m, but will 
restrict these types of investments to £4m and a time limit 
of 1 year. 

£4m 
1 year 

d.  

Any bank or building society that has a minimum long 
term credit rating of AA-, for deposits with a maturity of 
greater than one year (including forward deals in excess of 
one year from inception to repayment). 

£4m 
1 year 

Page 74

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 5



 
Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2020-2021 
 
 

 

 Non Specified Investment Category Limit (£ or %) 

e.  

Any non-rated subsidiary of a credit rated institution 
included in the specified investment category.  These 
institutions will be included as an investment category 
subject to the parent bank having the necessary credit 
rating to qualify in its own right. 

£5m 
1 year 

f.  Local authorities  
£5m 

1 year 

 
The monitoring of investment counterparties - The credit rating of counterparties 
will be monitored regularly.  The Council receives credit rating information (changes, 
rating watches and rating outlooks) from Link Asset Services as and when ratings 
change, and counterparties are checked promptly.  On occasion ratings may be 
downgraded when an investment has already been made.  The criteria used are 
such that a minor downgrading should not affect the full receipt of the principal and 
interest.  Any counterparty failing to meet the criteria will be removed from the list 
immediately by the Director of Resources, and if required new counterparties which 
meet the criteria will be added to the list. 
 
Accounting treatment of investments - The accounting treatment may differ from 
the underlying cash transactions arising from investment decisions made by this 
Council.  To ensure that the Council is protected from any adverse revenue impact, 
which may arise from these differences, we will review the accounting implications of 
new transactions before they are undertaken. 
 
7 TREASURY MANAGEMENT SCHEME OF DELEGATION 
 
(i) Full Council 

 approval of/amendments to the Council’s adopted clauses, treasury management 
policy statement and treasury management practices; 

 budget consideration and approval; 
 approval of the division of responsibilities; 
 approval of annual strategy. 

 
(ii) Executive Committee 

 receiving and reviewing regular monitoring reports and acting on 
recommendations; 

 approving the selection of external service providers and agreeing terms of 
appointment; 

 reviewing the treasury management policy and procedures and making 
recommendations to the Full Council. 

 
8 THE TREASURY MANAGEMENT ROLE OF THE SECTION 151 OFFICER 
 
The S151 (responsible) officer 

 recommending clauses, treasury management policy/practices for approval, 
reviewing the same regularly, and monitoring compliance; 

 submitting regular treasury management policy reports; 

Page 75

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 5



 
Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2020-2021 
 
 

 

 submitting budgets and budget variations; 
 receiving and reviewing management information reports; 
 reviewing the performance of the treasury management function; 
 ensuring the adequacy of treasury management resources and skills, and the 

effective division of responsibilities within the treasury management function; 
 ensuring the adequacy of internal audit, and liaising with external audit; 
 recommending the appointment of external service providers; 
 preparation of a capital strategy to include capital expenditure, capital financing, 

non-financial investments and treasury management, with a long term ensuring 
that the capital strategy is prudent, sustainable, affordable and prudent in the long 
term and provides value for money; 

 ensuring that due diligence has been carried out on all treasury and non-financial 
investments and is in accordance with the risk appetite of the authority; 

 ensure that the authority has appropriate legal powers to undertake expenditure 
on non-financial assets and their financing; 

 ensuring the proportionality of all investments so that the authority does not 
undertake a level of investing which exposes the authority to an excessive level of 
risk compared to its financial resources; 

 ensuring that an adequate governance process is in place for the approval, 
monitoring and ongoing risk management of all non-financial investments and 
long term liabilities; 

 provision to members of a schedule of all non-treasury investments including 
material investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures, loans and financial 
guarantees; 

 ensuring that members are adequately informed and understand the risk 
exposures taken on by an authority; 

 ensuring that the authority has adequate expertise, either in house or externally 
provided, to carry out the above; 

 creation of Treasury Management Practices which specifically deal with how non 
treasury investments will be carried out and managed, to include the following: 

 
o Risk management (TMP1 and schedules), including investment and 

risk management criteria for any material non-treasury investment 
portfolios; 

o Performance measurement and management (TMP2 and schedules), 
including methodology and criteria for assessing the performance and 
success of non-treasury investments;          

o Decision making, governance and organisation (TMP5 and schedules), 
including a statement of the governance requirements for decision making 
in relation to non-treasury investments; and arrangements to ensure that 
appropriate professional due diligence is carried out to support decision 
making; 

o Reporting and management information (TMP6 and schedules), including 
where and how often monitoring reports are taken; 

o Training and qualifications (TMP10 and schedules), including how the 
relevant knowledge and skills in relation to non-treasury investments will 
be arranged. 

Page 76

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 5



 

 

 

Medium Term Financial 
Plan 

 

 

 

Version Control: 

Document Name: Medium Term Financial Plan 

Version: 24012020.1 

Author: Director of Resources 

Approved by: Full Council 

Date Approved: February 2020 

Review Date: February 2021 

 

Page 77

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 5



Barrow Borough Council 

 
Medium Term Financial Plan 
2020-2021 to 2023-2024 
 
 

Page 1 

A.  Introduction 
 
Financial planning is a key tool for strategic management and is an aid to operational 
decision making.  Without financial planning the Council would be unlikely to achieve 
its priorities or make the best use of its resources.  The Medium Term Financial Plan 
(MTFP) is a financial representation of the Council’s vision and supports its priorities.   
 
Our vision is for our Borough to be a great place to live, work and visit. 
 
The thematic key priorities for the next four years are: 
 
1. Enabling our residents to live happy, healthy, productive lives. 

Putting people at the centre of all that we do is a key priority for the Council. We 
will do this by helping them to have the best start in life, enjoy healthy and active 
lifestyles, and have opportunities to improve their well-being by building strong 
communities. We will actively encourage people to work with us to design 
activities that meet their needs. We will work with our communities so that people 
can enjoy good health and live in a safe environment where they can be happy 
and reach their full potential. 

 
2. Creating vibrant, safe and welcoming places where people want to live. 

Our Borough is a great place to live, work and have fun. There is an abundance 
of natural beauty and heritage but there is also an opportunity to offer people 
more. We want a varied housing offer to retain our residents and attract new 
people to settle here. We want to build on existing strengths and encourage more 
people to visit the town centres in Barrow and Dalton by making them more 
vibrant so that residents and visitors enjoy a positive and memorable experience. 
We want to protect our natural environment. 

 
3. Supporting our economy to thrive and benefit all our residents. 

Barrow’s manufacturing heritage and its pivotal role in the defence industry is a 
source of local pride and tradition. Our world-class manufacturing expertise is 
recognised worldwide, however to enable inclusive growth we will seek to 
diversify our economy to secure opportunities for our residents by supporting 
other key industries including the growing renewable energy sector. In particular, 
we have the opportunity to secure continued investment in the Borough and 
ensure our residents have the skills and services to allow them to benefit from the 
growing economy.  We will deliver our ambitions through effective joint working 
with public and private sector partners, by offering a clear policy framework, 
proactive steps to promote the role and opportunities within the Borough and by 
securing additional public and private investment. 

 
These priorities will be used as the basis for all future business planning and to direct 
the activity of any spare capacity and resources.  Given the severe constraints on 
Council income it is necessary to think and act more like a business, drive 

Page 78

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 5



Barrow Borough Council 

 
Medium Term Financial Plan 
2020-2021 to 2023-2024 
 
 

Page 2 

efficiencies from services, generate more income and support innovation and best 
practice within services. 
 
This MTFP covers the period from 2020-2021 to 2023-2024.  The level of 
Government support for the Council is known for 2020-2021 and the years beyond 
are based on that same allocation/settlement whilst the funding formula and 
business rate baseline are consulted upon during 2020. 
 
The Medium Term Financial Strategy is the financial representation of the Budget 
Strategy which aims to eliminate the deficit in the core budget and establish ongoing 
financial resilience; this is a challenge with the authority’s low tax base.  Where 
necessary reserves will be used to control the pace of change, fund transformation 
and support the achievement long term financial resilience and delivery of the 
Council Plan.  
 
B.  Planning Process 
 
To ensure a robust and achievable Medium Term Financial Plan is established, the 
planning process covers a number of key aspects: 
 

 Leadership – leading Members, the Section 151 Officer and Management 
Team demonstrate strong leadership of finances and strategic direction. 

 Priorities – the Medium Term Financial Plan reflects the Councils Vision which 
is supported by its Priorities. 

 Ownership – the Director of Resources produces and updates the Medium 
Term Financial Plan. 

 Achievement – the Director of Resources will monitor adherence to the 
Medium Term Financial Plan and will quantify and report any significant 
deviation to the Executive Committee and Management Team. 

 Risk management – the Medium Term Financial Plan highlights the key 
considerations in terms of finance and refers to the Reserves and Balances 
Policy for the risk assessment of financial reserves. 

 Efficiencies – Management Team will pursue efficiencies and value for 
money, realising savings for the core budget.  This is an on-going process. 

 Completeness – the Medium Term Financial Plan incorporates the Council 
Priorities, the Budget Strategy, the Budget Setting process for revenue, capital 
and treasury management, and the Council Tax setting. 

 Relevance – the Medium Term Financial Plan will be reviewed periodically 
throughout the financial year and revised for known financial impacts.  This 
includes a review once the previous financial year outturn is known. 

Page 79

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 5



Barrow Borough Council 

 
Medium Term Financial Plan 
2020-2021 to 2023-2024 
 
 

Page 3 

C.  Budget Strategy and Funding 
 
Since the reductions in the local government financial settlement started in 2011, the 
Council will have reduced its core budget by £8.9m by March 2020; this is the 
cumulative position incorporated into the 2020-2021 revenue budget. 
 
The changes that have enabled the budget reduction to be sustained include: 
 

 Management Team/Management Board reduced by 50% 

 Staffing reduced by 20% 

 Service delivery model changes: 
o Revenues and Benefits service brought in-house after 20 years 
o Leisure Centre outsourced for the first time 
o Internal Audit service brought in-house 
o Payroll service brought in-house 

 Better procurement including major contract renewals 

 Rationalisation of service delivery 

 Income reviewed and income policy established 

 Opportunities for commercial estate maximised 

 Treasury management 

 Process efficiencies and cost saving measures 
 
The Budget Strategy also includes the prudent use and protection of reserves; where 
necessary reserves are used to support the revenue budget whilst the benefits of 
changes flow through. 
 
The Council is committed to continue to offer all current services as far as possible. 
 
Under the Local Government Finance Act 1992, the Council is charged with setting a 
balanced budget by the 11th March of the preceding financial year.  The budget for 
2020-2021 is balanced, but for projections ahead the national business rate retention 
review will have an impact.  During 2020-2021, the Council will continue to monitor 
the impacts of the Budget Strategy 2016-2020 to ensure that the reductions are 
sustained.  The future funding position will be reviewed once the formula and 
business rate retention shares are known or can be reasonably estimated. 
 
For this iteration of the MTFP it has been assumed that the settlement baseline is 
the value of business rates that will be available to the Council, however, it is hard to 
imagine that all of the local share of growth since the inception of the business rate 
retention scheme in 2013 will be removed in the reset.  A portion of the additional 
retained business rates (above baseline) have been included in the revenue budget 
since 2019-2020 in order to balance. 
 
To project the core budget forward the use of reserves, parish precepts and other 
one-off items must be removed; the 2020-2021 revenue budget that follows is 
presented without those single year items. 

Page 80

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 5



Barrow Borough Council 

 
Medium Term Financial Plan 
2020-2021 to 2023-2024 
 
 

Page 4 

For 2021-2022 the £0.1m final saving from the Budget Strategy is projected to be 
achieved; the income within the core budget from Marina Village is assumed to be 
replaced by income from the Waterfront Business Park; and non-recurring contract 
car parking income has been removed.  The budget projections, using the settlement 
baseline for 2020-2021, show a deficit for each future year. 
 

 
   

Medium Term Projections

 Core

2020-2021

£ 

 Estimate

2021-2022

£ 

 Estimate

2022-2023

£ 

 Estimate

2023-2024

£ 

Staff pay 7,230,540 7,469,630 7,685,130 7,904,950

Staff other costs 81,020 81,020 81,020 81,020

Transport 111,210 111,210 111,210 111,210

Property 1,912,660 1,976,180 2,043,510 2,114,970

Supplies and services 1,856,940 2,176,200 2,225,420 2,248,060

Contracts 3,722,630 3,418,500 3,508,440 3,644,030

Benefits 15,759,080 15,759,080 15,759,080 15,759,080

Benefits grants (15,635,860) (15,635,860) (15,635,860) (15,635,860)

External income (6,249,900) (6,254,440) (6,305,100) (6,358,730)

Direct costs 8,788,320 9,101,520 9,472,850 9,868,730

Internal income; HRA & capital (885,460) (885,460) (885,460) (885,460)

Capital charges 1,716,660 1,716,660 1,716,660 1,716,660

Indirect costs 831,200 831,200 831,200 831,200

Net expenditure 9,619,520 9,932,720 10,304,050 10,699,930

External interest earned (171,000) (152,000) (133,000) (114,000)

External interest paid 1,397,670 1,375,550 1,351,530 1,325,920

External interest HRA (813,020) (790,900) (766,880) (741,270)

Depreciation reversal (1,716,660) (1,716,660) (1,716,660) (1,716,660)

Minimum revenue provision 505,920 505,920 505,920 505,920

Pension contributions 283,060 288,750 294,550 300,470

Added to reserves:

Pension Fund volatility 586,280 585,150 583,980 582,780

Business Rates volatility 398,300 0 0 0

Net revenue budget 10,090,070 10,028,530 10,423,490 10,843,090

Budget funded by:

Revenue support grant (1,272,270) 0 0 0

New homes bonus grant (11,080) 0 0 0

Council tax precept (4,743,500) (4,890,570) (5,040,110) (5,192,150)

Retained business rates (3,543,830) (4,489,780) (4,579,570) (4,671,160)

Additional business rates retained (519,390) (529,780) (540,380) (551,190)

Other Government grants 0 0 0

Total revenue financing (10,090,070) (9,910,130) (10,160,060) (10,414,500)

Deficit 0 118,400 263,430 428,590

Page 81

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 5



Barrow Borough Council 

 
Medium Term Financial Plan 
2020-2021 to 2023-2024 
 
 

Page 5 

D.  Assumptions and Estimates 
 
Whilst each year’s budget is zero-based, the assumptions and estimates used to 
project the 2020-2021 core budgets out to 2023-2024 are: 
 

Item Assumption 

General 

Reserves Excluded 

Funded projects Excluded 

Parish precepts Excluded 

Services Budget Strategy proposals implemented 

Services Continue to be prudent and efficient 

Services No service reductions 

Services No demand-led increases assumed 

Services No alternative delivery models 

Staff  

Establishment Based on core 2020-2021 budget 

Incremental advances Employee progression continues 

Superannuation current service rate 20.6% 

Pay award 2% on each year 

Training Budget maintained 

Property  

Electricity and gas 8% increase each year 

Water 5% increase each year 

NNDR 2% increase each year (multiplier) 

Removal of refuse 4% increase each year 

Supplies and Services  

Grants to external bodies Continuing from reserves to 2024-2025 

LCTRS grant to Parishes Fixed at 2020-2021 figures for illustration 

Subscriptions 3% increase each year 

Professional fees and software 2% increase each year 

Members allowances 2% increase each year 

Contracts  

Revenues and benefits IT 3% increase each year 

Building cleaning contract 4% increase each year 

Grounds maintenance contract 2.4% increase each year 

Waste and street cleansing 4.5% increase each year 

Page 82

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 5



Barrow Borough Council 

 
Medium Term Financial Plan 
2020-2021 to 2023-2024 
 
 

Page 6 

Item Assumption 

External Income  

Discretionary income Income policy applied 

Discretionary income Assumed 2.5% increase each year 

Full cost recovery Increases covered by additional income 

Recycling No reduction in tonnage 

Recycling reward 3% increase in price per tonne 

Car parking tariffs and permits No increase in prices 

Housing benefit administration grant Reduced by 10% each year 

Internal Income  

Support services charged to HRA Based on 2020-2021 budget 

Support services charged to capital Based on 2020-2021 budget 

External Interest Earned  

Temporary surplus cash Reducing by £2m each year 

Investment income rate Assumed 0.95% weighted average 

External Interest Paid  

PWLB interest HRA maturing loans repaid 

Borrowing (cash requirement) No new borrowing drawn down 

Minimum Revenue Provision  

Pre April 2008 borrowing Fixed over 50 years 

Post April 2008 borrowing Charged in line with depreciation 

Pension Funding  

Pension fund triennial review As per valuation 

Quarterly increases & added amounts 2% increase each year 

Pension fund volatility Reserved 

Total Revenue Financing  

Revenue support grant Rolled into business rate baseline 

Retained business rates 2020-2021 settlement baseline 

Business rate multiplier 2% increase each year 

Additional business rates Based on 2020-2021 budget requirement 

Business rate volatility Reserved in 2020-2021 then £0 assumed 

New Homes Bonus No new award included 

Council tax base +1% each year & 99% collection rate 

Council tax band D Maximum allowed; higher of £5 and 1.99% 

LCTRS – default scheme Continues to mirror HB regulations 

Prior year Collection Fund result Not included or assumed 

Page 83

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 5



Barrow Borough Council 

 
Medium Term Financial Plan 
2020-2021 to 2023-2024 
 
 

Page 7 

E.  Reserves and Balances 
 
Throughout the Budget Strategy period the Council operated a Medium Term 
Financial Plan support reserve which was sufficient to fund the deficits forecast 
whilst service delivery changes were implemented.  To be able to deliver the Budget 
Strategy and service efficiencies to ensure future financial resilience, it is sometimes 
necessary to fund items of non-recurring expenditure.  Items of non-recurring 
expenditure necessary to deliver efficiencies and improvements are funded from the 
Transformation Reserve. 
 
The Medium Term Finance Plan support reserve is ended at the 31st March, 2020, 
having served its purpose.  This reserve was used to hold the outturn result of each 
year, after any specific reserve appropriations. 
 
Upon closing 2019-2020, the outturn review will appropriate any specific reserves 
(commercial properties for example), and the balance will be added to the Budget 
Contingency reserve; all reserves are reviewed when the financial year is closed and 
transfers are made where required. 
 
In order to be in a position to mitigate the fluctuations in the Borough Council’s 
retained share of Business Rates, income has been prudently set aside into a 
volatility reserve.  As the localisation of Business Rates progresses there is an 
increased risk and reliance placed on Business Rates to finance Council services; 
this is over and above the current fluctuations, revaluations and appeals. 
 
The reduced contribution to the Pension Fund is also considered to be a volatility risk 
as an increase in contributions from the next triennial valuation would result in a 
direct revenue impact and need for reduction in the core budget.  The reduction in 
contributions from the 2020 valuation is significant and once the final valuation is 
available and the first year actual valuation is published, the treatment of the amount 
reserved will be considered again.  The overall pension contributions, including 
increases from additional staffing and staff pay costs, will be taken into consideration 
when reviewed the amount held in reserve. 
 
The movements in reserves included in the projections are the best estimates based 
on previous years and known timeframes, but there may be slippage across the 
period covered.  Until the funding position beyond 2020-2021 is known, reserves as 
a whole will be protected as far as possible.  The Councils reserves are set out in the 
Reserves and Balances policy.  Reserves are earmarked for specific purposes 
through recommendations to Full Council from the Executive Committee.  
 
The General Fund balance at the 31st March, 2021, is projected to be £2,300,000; 
the minimum balance required is currently £1,900,000. 
 
The projected General Fund earmarked reserves over the life of this Medium Term 
Financial Plan are estimated in the following table. 

Page 84

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 5



Barrow Borough Council 

 
Medium Term Financial Plan 
2020-2021 to 2023-2024 
 
 

Page 8 

 
 
The additional business rates and pension fund volatility are presented within the 
Budget Contingency reserve when regular statements are produced. 
 
The projected deficits in the MTFP are shown as a reduction in reserves and this 
mirrors the approach taken with the MTFP support reserve.  It is important to note 
that the deficits are projected at a time when future revenue financing for authorities 
is not confirmed, the Budget Strategy is not complete, the pension contributions may 
remain at the projected lower level, and there may be opportunities to eliminate or 
reduce the deficits during 2020-2021. 
 
By the end of 2022-2023 some earmarked reserves will be depleted, e.g. the 
insurance reserve and planned maintenance.  These will be topped-up from the 
additional business rates or pension fund volatility, i.e. ideally from other reserves. 
 
Within the balance estimated to be held at the 31 March 2024, there are several 
committed amounts held against potential liabilities at £2.29m; major projects, 
losses, leisure contract (pension and major building works), industrial properties 
(formerly NWDA ring-fenced), Cumbria Business Rate Pool volatility and ring-fenced 
grants. 
 
The purpose of the earmarked reserves is as follows: 
 

 Transformation – Major projects funding, Budget Strategy implementation 
costs, efficiencies and invest to save projects. 

 Renewals – operational and commercial property major works, capital projects 
and cyclical renewal of major items. 

Reserve

Balance at

31/3/2021

£m

Balance at

31/3/2022

£m

Balance at

31/3/2023

£m

Balance at

31/3/2024

£m

Transformation including Major Projects 0.677 0.379 0.112 0.066

Renewals 0.918 0.818 0.718 0.618

Insurance 0.060 0.040 0.020 0.000

Losses 0.862 0.862 0.862 0.862

Budget contingency 1.308 1.149 0.992 0.734

Welfare support 0.267 0.211 0.154 0.097

Ring-fenced 0.484 0.384 0.283 0.183

4.576 3.843 3.141 2.560

Additional Business Rates 0.993 0.993 0.993 0.993

Pension Fund volatility 0.586 1.170 1.754 2.337

Projected deficits in the Medium Term Financial Plan supported by reserves:

Projected reserves 6.155 5.888 5.507 5.080

(0.810)
Business Rate volatility, additional Business 

Rates or Pension Fund volatility
0.000 (0.118) (0.381)

Page 85

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 5



Barrow Borough Council 

 
Medium Term Financial Plan 
2020-2021 to 2023-2024 
 
 

Page 9 

 Insurance - excesses payable over the medium term. 

 Losses - partial exemption VAT threshold, Municipal Mutual Insurance 
scheme of arrangement and uninsured losses. 

 Contingency - one-off items that are not in the core revenue budget, including 
business rate volatility and pension fund volatility. 

 Welfare support - for discretionary housing payments and assistance for 
supported welfare organisations. 

 Revenue grants - income which has no claw-back conditions attached and are 
yet to be applied to matching expenditure. 

Page 86

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 5



Barrow Borough Council 

 
Medium Term Financial Plan 
2020-2021 to 2023-2024 
 
 

Page 10 

F.  Council Tax 
 
The Council Tax for 2020-2021 is to be set by Full Council on the 27th February, 
2020, and the unparished Band A value is £160.27 including a £3.33 increase 
(2.12%).  The unparished Band D value is £240.41 with the Tax Base at 19,730.84; 
the Council’s demand on the Collection Fund to meet the 2020-2021 General Fund 
budget was set at £4,743,500, excluding parish precepts. 
 
The Council Tax Base is calculated on Band D equivalents; the following table 
highlights that 89% of properties in the Borough are lower than Band D, giving the 
authority a low Council Tax Base.  Across the whole Borough, the chargeable 
dwellings estimated for 2020-2021 are split over the Council Tax bands in the 
following table.  The chargeable dwellings are then shown as their Band D 
equivalent and then net of reductions such as Council Tax Support and single 
person discount. 
  

Band Ratio Chargeable Dwellings 

Chargeable 

Dwellings 

Grouped 

Band D 

equivalents 

After 

reductions 

A 6/9 19,237 59% 

89% 

12,819.12 8,720.90 

B 7/9 5,395 16% 4,196.11 3,577.66 

C 8/9 4,644 14% 4,128.00 3,700.79 

D 9/9 2,337 7% 7% 2,337.00 2,142.27 

E 11/9 1,013 3% 

4% 

1,238.11 1,158.16 

F 13/9 232 1% 335.11 317.46 

G 15/9 71 0% 118.34 107.66 

H 18/9 3 0% 6.00 5.94 

Totals: 32,932   25,177.79 19,730.84 

 

 
 

Page 87

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 5



Barrow Borough Council 

 
Medium Term Financial Plan 
2020-2021 to 2023-2024 
 
 

Page 11 

G.  Risk 
 
Estimates contain an element of risk from items such as inflation, the financial 
markets, Government support, customer demand and the anticipation of future 
events.  The Council’s Reserves and Balances Policy sets out the risk assessment 
applied to estimates.  Some of the key financial considerations are: 
 

 Budget Strategy reductions must be sustained. 

 Strong contracting and procurement is vital. 

 Open consultations concerning future funding. 

 Delivery of the Council Plan within financial constraints. 

 Impacts of delivering of major projects and accountable body status. 

 Allowances for inflation may be insufficient. 

 Employer pension contributions may increase. 

 National insurance contributions may increase. 

 Staff grading changes or other structural changes are not budgeted for. 

 Usage of gas and electricity may be estimated too low. 

 NNDR and water rates may change. 

 Professional services may be required to support key functions. 

 The possibility of driving further efficiency savings from the budget. 

 No major contracts are due to be retendered during the life of this Plan. 

 Some lower value (non-major) long-term contracts are to be retendered during 
the life of this Plan. 

 Additional expenditure items must be necessary and are subject to approval; 
as determined by the Director of Resources. 

 Recurring additional expenditure must be approved; as determined by the 
Director of Resources. 

 Cash flow requirements must be constantly reviewed. 

 The cost of new borrowing is not included or anticipated. 

 Interest rate fluctuations. 

 The next triennial pension fund valuation will apply from 2023. 

 Uncertain of the continuation of the Cumbria business rates pool. 

 The impact of Universal Credit and other welfare reforms. 

 Economic downturn. 

 Strong and robust financial management. 

 New requirements or legislative changes with significant implications. 
 

Page 88

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 5



Barrow Borough Council 

 
Medium Term Financial Plan 
2020-2021 to 2023-2024 
 
 

Page 12 

H.  Capital 
 
The Capital Programme is based on the principles set out in the Capital Strategy. 
 
The Programme for this medium term period does not include any borrowing as this 
leads to increased capital costs in the revenue budget.  The Programme does 
include anticipated funding for known grants, capital receipts, and the use of the 
Major Repairs Reserve.  The Renewals Reserve may be called upon where Council 
owned properties require major capital works; this will be informed by the Asset 
Management Plan.   
 
The capital receipts include known land disposals that are already identified and in 
progress – if those receipts are realised then the Programme is fully funded.  The 
projects in future years will not be commissioned until sufficient funding is in place.   
 
For externally funded projects, the Council’s policy is not to include schemes in the 
overall Programme until such time as the sources of funding have been confirmed.   
 
The Capital Programme projection summary to 2022-2023 is shown below. 
 

 
 

Particularly reliant on usable capital receipts is the Industrial & Commercial 
Properties project line; £0.975m included in 2021-2022. 

 
An Asset Management Plan is to be developed during 2020-2021 that will inform 
future programming for Council assets planned maintenance. 

Page 89

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 5



Barrow Borough Council 

 
Medium Term Financial Plan 
2020-2021 to 2023-2024 
 
 

Page 13 

I.  Treasury 
 
The Treasury Management Strategy and Capital Strategy are set annually.  The 
Treasury Strategy includes the Prudential Indicators that control all of the Council’s 
treasury activities, the borrowing strategy, the annual investment strategy and credit 
and counterparty risk management. 
 
CIPFA defines treasury management as: “The management of the local authority’s 
investments and cash flows, its banking, money market and capital market 
transactions; the effective control of the risks associated with those activities; and the 
pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those risks.” 
 
The Council is required to set the maximum level, beyond which external debt is 
prohibited.  This limit can only be set or revised by Full Council.  This Prudential 
Indicator is the Authorised Limit for External Debt: 
 

 
 

The General Fund external debt is long term whilst the Housing Revenue Account 
has a mixture of maturity dates due to the self-financing exit from the previous 
Government subsidy regime; the external debt for MTFP period will be: 
 

 
 

The external debt and is split between the General Fund and the Housing Revenue 
Account as follows: 
 

 
 
  

2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23

Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate

£m £m £m £m

Total 55 55 55 54

Authorised limit

2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23

Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate

£m £m £m £m

At 1st April 37.479 36.479 35.479 34.479
Expected change (1.000) (1.000) (1.000) (1.000)
Gross debt at 31st March 36.479 35.479 34.479 33.479

External debt

2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23

Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate

£m £m £m £m

General Fund 13.380 13.380 13.380 13.380

Housing Revenue Account 23.099 22.099 21.099 20.099

Gross debt at 31st March 36.479 35.479 34.479 33.479

External debt

Page 90

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 5



Barrow Borough Council 

 
Medium Term Financial Plan 
2020-2021 to 2023-2024 
 
 

Page 14 

J.  Housing Revenue Account 
 
From the 1st April 2012 the Housing Subsidy system ended.  The Housing Revenue 
Account is self-financing as set out in its 30 year Business Plan; the rent from the 
dwellings pays for the upkeep and management of the dwellings.  The Housing 
Revenue Account remains a ring-fenced account as determined by the Local 
Government Housing Act 1989. 
 
The Housing Revenue Account budget for 2020-2021 is to be set by Full Council on 
the 27th February, 2020.  It is a balanced budget with a 2.7% rent increase for 
dwellings and garages. 
 
For 2020-2021 there is a contribution to reserves and this is removed from the core 
budget as a one-off transaction; these funds which will be brought back into revenue 
in a future year. 
 

 
 
 

Core Budget

2020-2021

£

Projection

2021-2022

£

Projection

2022-2023

£

Projection

2023-2024

£

Expenditure

Repairs and maintenance 3,189,150 3,399,400 3,503,620 3,610,340

Supervision and management 3,493,880 3,545,890 3,601,180 3,657,750

Rents, rates, taxes and other charges 12,500 12,650 12,900 13,160

Depreciation of dwellings 1,916,890 1,916,890 1,916,890 1,916,890

Depreciation of other assets 175,620 175,620 175,620 175,620

Debt management expenses 12,100 12,100 12,100 12,100

Movement in the allowance for bad debts 292,210 292,210 292,210 292,210

Total expenditure 9,092,350 9,354,760 9,514,520 9,678,070

Income

Dwelling rents (9,713,950) (9,844,320) (9,975,430) (10,108,640)

Non-dwelling rents (416,790) (421,450) (426,480) (431,610)

Charges for services and facilities (1,053,020) (1,053,020) (1,053,020) (1,053,020)

Total income (11,183,760) (11,318,790) (11,454,930) (11,593,270)

HRA share of corporate and democratic core 248,430 248,430 248,430 248,430

HRA share of non-distributed costs (60) 0 0 0

Net total (1,843,040) (1,715,600) (1,691,980) (1,666,770)

Interest payable and similar charges 901,780 879,660 855,640 830,030

Pension interest and expected return on assets 133,100 133,100 133,100 133,100

Surplus for the year (808,160) (702,840) (703,240) (703,640)

Adjustments under regulations:

Voluntary repayment provision 816,520 816,520 816,520 816,520

Reversal of pension accounting (133,100) (133,100) (133,100) (133,100)

Pension contributions 19,020 19,420 19,820 20,220

Total adjustments 702,440 702,840 703,240 703,640

Deficit/(surplus) for the year (105,720) 0 0 0

Page 91

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 5



Barrow Borough Council 

 
Medium Term Financial Plan 
2020-2021 to 2023-2024 
 
 

Page 15 

The dwelling stock at the 1st April, 2019, was 2,587 and is estimated to be 2,571 by 
the 1st April, 2020, with 16 sales per year assumed for future budget projections.   
 
The projections out to 2023-2024 show a balanced budget for the Housing Revenue 
Account; the projections use the same assumptions as the General Fund where 
applicable, plus dwelling and garage rents increasing by 2% each year, and where 
any surplus arises it has been allocated to the maintenance budget which fluctuates 
each year in accordance with the overall housing maintenance programme. 
 
The Housing Revenue Account balance at the 31st March, 2021, is projected to be 
£1,000,000; the minimum balance required is currently £900,000. 
 
The planned housing maintenance programme is presented as part of the Capital 
Strategy. 

Page 92

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 5



 

 

 

 Reserves and Balances 

Policy 

 

Version Control: 

Document Name: Reserves and Balances Policy 

Version: 20012020.1 

Author: Director of Resources 

Approved by: Full Council 

Date Approved: February 2020 

Review Date: February 2021 

Page 93

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 5



 

Page 1 

Reserves and Balances Policy 
 
 
Legislative and Regulatory Framework 
 
The requirement for financial reserves is acknowledged in statute.  Sections 31A, 32, 
42A and 43 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 require billing and precepting 
authorities in England and Wales to have regard to the level of reserves needed for 
meeting estimated future expenditure when calculating the budget requirement.  
Local authorities may also ‘earmark’ specific parts of the General Fund reserve; 
these are referred to as Earmarked Reserves. 
 
There are a range of safeguards in place that help to prevent local authorities over-
committing themselves financially.  These include: 
 

 the balanced budget requirement: sections 31A, 42A of the Local Government 
Finance Act 1992, as amended 

 Director of Resources’ duty to report on robustness of estimates and 
adequacy of reserves (under section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003) 
when the authority is considering its budget requirement 

 the legislative requirement for each local authority to make arrangements for 
the proper administration of their financial affairs and that the Director of 
Resources / proper officer has responsibility for the administration of those 
affairs section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 

 the requirements of the Prudential Code. 
 
These requirements are reinforced by section 114 of the Local Government Finance 
Act 1988 which requires the Director of Resources in England and Wales to report to 
all the authority’s councillors if there is or is likely to be unlawful expenditure or an 
unbalanced budget.  This would include situations where reserves have become 
seriously depleted and it is forecast that the authority will not have the resources to 
meet its expenditure in a particular financial year.  The issue of a section 114 notice 
cannot be taken lightly and has serious operational implications.  Indeed, the 
authority’s full council must meet within 21 days to consider the s114 notice and 
during that period the authority is prohibited from entering into new agreements 
involving the incurring of expenditure. 
 
Whilst it is primarily the responsibility of the local authority and its chief financial 
officer to maintain a sound financial position, external auditors will confirm that there 
are no material uncertainties about going concern.  Even where as part of their wider 
role auditors have to report on an authority’s financial position, it is not their 
responsibility to prescribe the optimum or minimum level of reserves for individual 
authorities or authorities in general. 
 

Page 94

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 5



 

Page 2 

CIPFA's Prudential Code requires Director of Resources in local authorities to have 
full regard to affordability when making recommendations about the local authority’s 
future capital programme.  Such consideration includes the level of long term 
revenue commitments.  Indeed, in considering the affordability of its capital plans, 
the authority is required to consider all of the resources available to it/estimated for 
the future, together with the totality of its capital plans and revenue forecasts for the 
forthcoming year and the following two years. 
 
Types of Reserve 
 
When reviewing medium term financial plans and preparing annual budgets local 
authorities should consider the establishment and maintenance of reserves.  These 
can be held for three main purposes: 
 

 a working balance to help cushion the impact of uneven cash flows and avoid 
unnecessary temporary borrowing – this forms part of general reserves; 

 a contingency to cushion the impact of unexpected events or emergencies – 
this also forms part of general reserves; 

 a means of building up funds, often referred to as earmarked reserves to meet 
known or predicted requirements; earmarked reserves are accounted for 
separately but remain legally part of the General Fund. 

 
Financial Reporting for Reserves 
 
The IFRS-based Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United 
Kingdom (the Code) introduced the Movement in Reserves Statement to local 
authority financial statements in the 2010-2011 financial year.  This Statement 
presents the movement in the year of the reserves of the authority analysed into 
usable reserves, (such as General Fund, HRA Balances and earmarked reserves) 
and unusable reserves. 
 
Unusable reserves arise out of the interaction of legislation and proper accounting 
practice either to store revaluation gains or as adjustment accounts to reconcile 
accounting requirements driven by reporting standards to statutory requirements.  
These reserves, which are not resource-backed and cannot be used for any other 
purpose, are described below: 
 
Revaluation Reserve 
 

 The Revaluation Reserve - this is a reserve that records unrealised gains in 
the value of property, plant and equipment.  The reserve increases when 
assets are revalued upwards, and decreases as assets are depreciated or 
when assets are revalued downwards or disposed of.  Local authorities might 
benefit from these gains in the future from the continued use of the assets or 
from their sale.  The Reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated 

Page 95

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 5



 

Page 3 

since 1 April 2007, the date that the Reserve was created.  Accumulated 
gains arising before that date are consolidated into the balance on the Capital 
Adjustment Account. 

 
Adjustment Accounts 
 

 The Pensions Reserve – this is a specific accounting mechanism used to 
reconcile the payments made for the year to various statutory pension 
schemes in accordance with those schemes’ requirements and the net 
change in the authority’s recognised liability under the Code’s adoption of IAS 
19 – Employee Benefits, for the same period.  A transfer is made to or from 
the pensions reserve to ensure that the charge to the General Fund reflects 
the amount required to be raised in taxation.  For example, the debit balance 
on the Reserve shows that an authority has made commitments to fund 
pensions that the Government has permitted it to fund from contributions to be 
made in future years. 

 The Capital Adjustment Account - this is a specific accounting mechanism 
used to reconcile the different rates at which assets are depreciated under 
proper accounting practice and are financed through the capital controls 
system.  Statute requires that the charge to the General Fund is determined 
by the capital controls system.  For example, the credit balance on the 
Account shows that an authority has generally financed capital investment in 
advance of receiving the benefits of that investment.  The Account also 
contains revaluation gains accumulated on Property, Plant and Equipment 
before 1 April 2007, the date that the Revaluation Reserve was created to 
hold such gains. 

 The Financial Instruments Adjustment Account – this is a specific accounting 
mechanism used to reconcile the different rates at which gains and losses 
(such as premiums on the early repayment of debt) are recognised under 
proper accounting practice and are required by statute to be met from the 
Housing Revenue Account Fund. For example, the debit balance on the 
Account shows that an authority has incurred expenses on borrowings that 
the Government has permitted it to spread over future years. 

 Collection Fund Adjustment Account – this is a specific accounting 
mechanism used to reconcile the differences arising from the recognition of 
council tax and non-domestic rates income in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement to those amounts required to be charged by statute to 
the General Fund.  For example, the credit balance on the Account shows 
that more tax has been collected on behalf of the authority and the precepting 
bodies (and central government for non-domestic rates income) than an 
authority is permitted to transfer out of the Collection Fund by 31 March. 

 The Accumulated Absences Adjustment Account – this is a specific 
accounting mechanism used to absorb the differences that would otherwise 
arise on the General Fund and Housing Revenue Account Balances from 

Page 96

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 5



 

Page 4 

accruing for compensated absences earned but not taken in the year, this is 
annual leave entitlement carried forward at 31 March.  Statutory 
arrangements require that the impact on the Fund Balances is neutralised by 
transfers to or from the Account. 

 
Other such reserves may be created in future where developments in local authority 
accounting result in timing differences between the recognition of income and 
expenditure under proper accounting practice and under statute or regulation. 
 
In addition authorities will hold the following usable reserves: 
 

 Major Repairs Reserve – this reserve records the unspent amount of HRA 
balances for capital financing purposes in accordance with statutory 
requirements for the Reserve. 

 Capital Receipts Reserve – this reserve holds the proceeds from the sale of 
assets, and can only be used for those purposes specified in the capital 
finance and accounting regulations. 

 Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve – this reserve holds capital grants that 
have been received but have yet to be used to finance capital expenditure.  
Amounts are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account once they have 
been applied to fund capital expenditure. 

The Code recommends that earmarked reserves are reported on the face of the 
Movement in Reserves Statement.  Particularly significant movements might need to 
be reported individually on the face of the Statement to ensure key messages are 
presented clearly to users. 
 
When establishing reserves, local authorities need to ensure that they are complying 
with the Code and in particular the need to distinguish between reserves and 
provisions. 
 
The introduction of the IFRS-based Code on 1 April 2010 has meant that grant 
income should be recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement (and therefore against the General Fund or HRA Balances for revenue 
grants) where grant payment is unconditional or grant conditions have been 
satisfied.  The Code Guidance Notes recommend that where these grants have been 
received prior to the expenditure having taken place authorities should consider 
establishing earmarked reserves.  This will ensure that amounts are set aside from 
the General Fund and HRA balances in earmarked reserves to provide financing to 
meet the requirements of the grant.  The amounts set aside will be posted back from 
earmarked reserves to meet General Fund and HRA expenditure in future years.  It 
is likely therefore that since the introduction of the IFRS-based Code there is an 
increased tendency to hold earmarked reserves. 
 

Page 97

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 5



 

Page 5 

The statutory reporting regime described earlier and effective financial management 
underpin the need for clear, transparent reporting arrangements for reserves and 
therefore in addition to the financial reporting requirements above, it is 
recommended that for each earmarked reserve held by a local authority there should 
be a clear protocol setting out: 
 

 the reason for / purpose of the reserve; 

 how and when the reserve can be used; 

 procedures for the reserve's management and control; and 

 a process and timescale for review of the reserve to ensure continuing 
relevance and adequacy. 

 
Principles to Assess the Adequacy of Reserves 
 
In order to assess the adequacy of unallocated general reserves when setting the 
budget, Director of Resources should take account of the strategic, operational and 
financial risks facing the authority.  The assessment of risks should include external 
risks, such as flooding, as well as internal risks, for example, the ability to deliver 
planned efficiency savings.  Statutory provisions require authorities to review at least 
once in a year the effectiveness of their system of internal control, which will include 
risk management.  The CIPFA/SOLACE framework Delivering Good Governance in 
Local Government details an approach to giving assurance that risk, control and 
governance matters are being addressed in accordance with best practice. 
 
The Codes of Audit Practice make it clear that it is the responsibility of the authority 
body to identify and address its operational and financial risks, and to develop and 
implement proper arrangements to manage them, including adequate and effective 
systems of internal control.  The financial risks should be assessed in the context of 
the authority’s overall approach to risk management. 
 

Budget Assumptions 
Financial standing and management 
assessment/impact 

The treatment of inflation and 
interest rates. 

The overall financial standing of the authority (level 
of borrowing, debt outstanding, council tax 
collection rates and so on). Rises in the prices of 
some commodities, such as fuel, highlight the 
relevance of using a number of inflation rates in the 
budget and financial strategy, and considering 
whether general reserves are adequate to deal with 
unexpected increases. 
 
Volatility in the financial markets also points to the 
need to consider investment and borrowing risks 
and their impact on income. 

Page 98

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 5



 

Page 6 

Budget Assumptions 
Financial standing and management 
assessment/impact 

Estimates of the level and 
timing of capital receipts. 

The authority’s track record in budget and financial 
management including the robustness of the 
medium term plans. Authorities will also need to 
take into account changes in the property market, 
and adjust estimates and assumptions for reserves 
accordingly. 

The treatment of demand led 
pressures. 

The authority’s capacity to manage in-year budget 
pressures, and its strategy for managing both 
demand and service delivery in the longer term. 

The treatment of planned 
efficiency savings/productivity 
gains. 

The authority’s virement and end of year 
procedures in relation to budget under/overspends 
at authority and department/directorate level.  Risk 
management measures in relation to partnerships, 
including consideration of risk allocation. Contract 
provisions designed to safeguard the authority's 
position in the event of problems arising from 
outsourcing arrangements. 

The availability of reserves, 
government grants and other 
funds to deal with major 
contingencies and the 
adequacy of provisions. 

The adequacy of the authority’s insurance 
arrangements to cover major unforeseen risks.  
When considering insurance cover, the structure of 
the cover as well as the overall level of risk should 
be taken into account. 
Risk assessments should be used when balancing 
the levels of insurance premiums and reserves. 

The general financial climate 
to which the authority is 
subject. 

External factors, such as future funding levels 
expected to be included in Spending Reviews and 
expected referenda principles and limits, will 
influence an authority's ability to replenish reserves 
once they have been used.  Any plans for using 
reserves will need to consider the need and ability 
of the authority to replenish the reserves, and the 
risks to which the authority will be exposed whilst 
replenishing the reserves. 

 
Whist many of these factors relate to setting the annual budget, the level of risk and 
uncertainty associated with these factors will be relevant in determining an 
appropriate level of reserves. 
 
Authorities have been faced by increasing financial pressures since 2008.  This has 
been followed by a period of significant reduction in government funding which is 
anticipated to continue for some time.  Demands on local government services 
continue to increase. 
 
 

Page 99

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 5



 

Page 7 

In addition to reduction in government funding other pressures include: 
 

 Councils striving to constrain council tax increases, 

 reductions of income, 

 new service demands and responsibilities such as: 

- the localisation of non-domestic rates retention, and 
- council tax support 

 severe weather and floods. 
 
Furthermore, events such as the losses in Icelandic banks and the problems in 
global financial markets are likely to mean that Councils will focus on cautious 
investment strategies.  Council budgets and reserves have remained under pressure 
and are likely to continue to do so for some time. 
 
The many factors involved when considering appropriate levels of reserves can only 
be assessed properly at a local level.  A considerable degree of professional 
judgement is required.  The Director of Resources may choose to express advice on 
the level of balances in cash and/or as a percentage of budget (to aid understanding) 
so long as that advice is tailored to the circumstances of the authority.  The Audit 
Commission Report (December 2012) Striking a Balance makes a number of 
recommendations to both Director of Resources and elected members to better 
assist councils in their decision making. 
 
The advice should be set in the context of the authority’s risk register and medium 
term plans and should not focus exclusively on short-term considerations.  Balancing 
the annual budget by drawing on general reserves may be viewed as a legitimate 
short-term option.  However, it is not normally prudent for reserves to be deployed to 
finance recurrent expenditure.  CIPFA has commented that Councils should be 
particularly wary about using one off reserves to deal with shortfalls in current 
funding.  Where such action is to be taken, this should be made explicit, and an 
explanation given as to how such expenditure will be funded in the medium to long 
term.  Advice should be given on the adequacy of reserves over the lifetime of the 
medium term financial plan, and should also take account of the expected need for 
reserves in the longer term. 
 
Events such as the floods and severe weather that occurred in recent years have 
emphasised the need for authorities to be prepared for major unforeseen events.  
Adequate insurance cover combined with appropriate levels of reserves will enable 
authorities to manage the demands placed on them in such circumstances.  
However, these arrangements need to take account of all possible scenarios.  An 
example quoted in the Audit Commission report Staying Afloat is that the total cost of 
the flooding was reduced where authorities had specifically considered the impact of 
a wide scale, serious event affecting many assets, and had taken appropriate action, 

Page 100

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 5



 

Page 8 

for example, negotiating insurance policies that capped the total excesses linked to 
one event. 
 
Part of the risk management process involves taking appropriate action to mitigate or 
remove risks, where this is possible.  This in turn may lead to a lower level of 
reserves being required, and it would be appropriate to consider reducing the level of 
balances held where appropriate action to mitigate or remove risks has been 
successfully undertaken.  A balance will need to be found between maintaining 
adequate levels of reserves and investing in risk reduction measures.  This balance 
should form part of the risk management process and be considered as part of the 
annual budget process. 
 
Emergency financial assistance from central government may be available to assist 
authorities in dealing with the immediate consequences of major unforeseen events, 
normally under the Emergency Financial Assistance to Local Authorities scheme 
(commonly known as the ‘Bellwin’ scheme).  However, there is no automatic 
entitlement to financial assistance, and where financial assistance is given, it will not 
cover all of the costs even in exceptional circumstances.   Authorities should plan to 
have access to sufficient resources (through reserves, insurance or a combination of 
both) to cover the costs of recovering from events that are likely to be unavoidable. 
 
When considering the level of reserves, it would be appropriate for authorities to take 
into account the likely level of Government support that would be available, and to 
consider how the balance would be funded in the event of an unforeseen event 
occurring. 
 
Flooding, the effects of severe weather and the impact of the problems experienced 
by the global financial markets are examples of external risks which local authorities 
may need to take into account in setting levels of reserves and wider financial 
planning.  An assessment of external risks should not be limited to those issues, but 
should range more widely, to take account of all significant external risks identified 
through the authority’s risk management processes. 
 
Director of Resources Reporting 
 
The Director of Resources as Section 151 Officer has a fiduciary duty to local 
taxpayers, and must be satisfied that the decisions taken on balances and reserves 
represent proper stewardship of public funds. 
 
The level and utilisation of reserves will be determined formally by the Council, 
informed by the advice and judgement of the Director of Resources.  To enable the 
Council to reach its decision, the Director of Resources should report the factors that 
influenced their judgement, and ensure that the advice given is recorded formally. 
 
Where the Director’s advice is not accepted this should be recorded formally in the 
minutes of the Council meeting. 

Page 101

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 5



 

Page 9 

It is recommended that: 
 

 the budget report to the Council should include a statement showing the 
estimated opening general reserve fund balance for the year ahead, the 
addition to/withdrawal from balances, and the estimated end of year balance.  
Reference should be made as to the extent to which such reserves are to be 
used to finance recurrent expenditure; 

 this should be accompanied by a statement from the Director of Resources on 
the adequacy of the general reserves and provisions in respect of the 
forthcoming financial year and the authority’s medium term financial strategy; 

 a statement reporting on the annual review of earmarked reserves should also 
be made at the same time to the Council.  The review itself should be 
undertaken as part of the budget preparation process.  The statement should 
list the various earmarked reserves, the purposes for which they are held and 
provide advice on the appropriate levels.  It should also show the estimated 
opening balances for the year, planned additions/withdrawals and the 
estimated closing balances. 

 
Reserves Held 
 
The Council will not hold a general reserve as this is accounted for within the 
General Fund balance.  General reserves have no restriction on their use and can be 
used to smooth the impact of significant pressures across years, offset the budget 
requirement in year, and to mitigate the risks of unexpected events or emergencies.  
The restructuring reserve is used to smooth budget pressures over the medium term. 
 
Earmarked reserves are usually created and held for one of the five main reasons 
below: 
 

1. Service restructuring – to fund the costs of organisational changes so that the 
beneficial impact of savings achieved may be immediately realised in revenue 
budgets. 

2. Renewals – to enable services to plan and finance an effective programme of 
equipment replacement and planned property maintenance.  These reserves 
are a mechanism to smooth expenditure so that a sensible replacement 
programme can be achieved without the need to vary budgets. 

3. Insurance – to meet the estimate of future claims to enable the Council to 
meet excesses not covered by insurance. 

4. Losses – such as breaching the partial exemption VAT threshold, uninsured 
losses and other liabilities. 

5. Other earmarked reserves will be set up from time to time to meet known or 
predicted liabilities, such as future predicted budget demand pressures. 

 

Page 102

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 5



 

Page 10 

The Council has the following financial reserves: 
 

1. Medium Term Financial Plan Support reserve - budget support identified in 
the Medium Term Financial Plan; proposed to end at 31st March, 2020. 

2. Service Transformation - funds for service redesign and investment in 
efficiencies from the Budget Strategy; funds set aside for efficiency bids from 
services; funds for major projects. 

3. Renewals - revenue funds set aside for capital projects and cyclical renewal 
of major items. 

4. Insurance - funds set aside for excesses payable over the medium term. 

5. Losses - funds set aside for the partial exemption VAT threshold, the MMI 
scheme of arrangement and any uninsured losses. 

6. Earmarked reserves - contingency reserve for the funds set aside to cover 
one-off items that are not set in the revenue budget  including business rate 
and pension fund volatility; welfare support reserve for the funds set aside to 
support discretionary housing payments and external funding commitments.  

 
There are also ring-fenced reserves which are funds received and set aside in 
accordance with the grant funding source.  These can only be used for specific 
expenditure and are not available for transfer or general use.  
 
Holding Reserves 
 
The Council recognises the need to hold and maintain reserves but also recognises 
the opportunity cost of holding balances as reserves.  For this reason it is important 
to set out clearly, and regularly review, the framework through which reserves are 
managed. 
 
The management of financial reserves is a key tool of the Council’s overall strategy 
which has two key objectives: 
 

 achieving stable and sustainable budgets throughout the medium term; and 

 ensuring resources are effectively focussed on priorities. 
 
Underpinning the achievement of these objectives is the recognition of the need to 
manage risk.  This could be the increased risks of volatility in planning assumptions 
in uncertain economic times, or the risks to Government funding as a result of 
significant future funding reviews. 
 
Building Reserves 
 
The Director of Resources is authorised to annually review and recommend the 
appropriate level of revenue balances during the budget setting process and at the 
end of the financial year.  The Director of Resources will take into consideration all 

Page 103

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 5



 

Page 11 

relevant factors at the time of the review.  The bases and reasons for recommending 
a certain level will be reported to committee as part of the budget setting process 
and/or as part of the final accounts reporting stage. 
 
Earmarked reserves may be established, as part of setting the budget or for a 
specific purpose to be used in the future.  Or they can be created at the end of the 
financial year if the final outturn allows the creation of a new reserve or the addition 
to an existing reserve.  Adding funds into financial reserves is the responsibility of full 
Council, however the transactions with reserves when closing the financial year are 
delegated to the Director of Resources; these are reported to the Executive 
Committee with the Outturn Report. 
 
Using Reserves 
 
Revenue balances can be used to meet the cost of emergencies, unexpected events 
or un-budgeted statutory items.  The Director of Resources can authorise this type of 
expenditure but must report it to committee at the earliest opportunity. 
 
Revenue balances may be used to supplement un-budgeted but necessary 
expenditure that could impact on service delivery if not incurred.  The Director of 
Resources can authorise this expenditure up to a limit of 1% of the net revenue 
budget; if the expenditure is not directly related to operational service delivery 
consultation with the Chief Executive is also required.  The Director of Resources 
must also ensure that such expenditure would not have a detrimental effect on the 
overall finances of the Council. 
 
Earmarked reserves can only be used for the purpose for which they were created.  
The Executive Committee, however, can change the use of the earmarked reserve if 
it so wishes or move funds between reserves but cannot increase the overall 
reserves of the Council. 
 
Earmarked reserves created for general use must have the Executive Committee 
approval before they are used for a specific purpose.  The Executive Committee, on 
the recommendation of the Director of Resources, can eliminate or reduce the funds 
in the earmarked reserves by adding them to the revenue balances.  The Director of 
Resources may transfer between reserves and report to the Executive Committee 
with the Outturn Report. 
 
Other Protocols 
 
Any under spending on the revenue budget is not permitted to be carried forward to 
the following year.  It will revert back to the revenue balance. 
 
This policy will be subject to periodic review and approval by the Executive 
Committee and where necessary, by Full Council. 
 

Page 104

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 5



 

Page 12 

Minimum Reserves 
 
The General Fund minimum balance for 2020-2021 has been assessed as £1.9m 
and should preferably be held above that level if possible; £2.3m is held. 
 
The losses reserve also has a minimum level as the items that this covers are not 
included in the General Fund balance; these are different in nature and do not lend 
themselves to risk analysis, being fully payable when they are triggered.  The losses 
reserve includes the partial exemption VAT threshold £171k, the MMI scheme of 
arrangement £441k and any uninsured losses £250k. 
 
Housing Revenue Account 
 
In previous years a blended risk factor of 10% was been applied to the gross 
expenditure (or gross income as it is a balanced budget) of the Housing Revenue 
Account given the challenges that welfare reforms create for rent collection; the bad 
debt provision also reflects the impacts on the Housing Revenue Account of welfare 
reforms and rents. 
 
The Director of Resources has reviewed the financial reserves required by the 
Housing Revenue Account (HRA).  The fund balance together with a separate 
general earmarked reserve is recommended as the most appropriate method for 
holding the HRA financial reserves. 
 
The HRA fund balance has been risk assessed with regard to budget assumptions, 
the level and timing of income, demand led expenditure, cash flow, the availability of 
reserves to deal with major contingencies, the materialisation of planned savings, the 
general financial climate and upcoming changes.  The impact of each element of risk 
exposure is assessed to arrive at a minimum balance for the fund which remains 
untouched by operational budget matters.  The HRA fund balance has been risk 
assessed as £0.9m; £1m is held. 
 
The general earmarked reserve will contain the funds available to the HRA for 
restructuring costs, service development costs, insurance premiums (including old 
MMI claims settlement), uninsured losses, one-off items of spend that meet the 
Reserves and Balances Policy, budget support and budget volatility (including 
housing maintenance). 
  
Risks and Calculations 
 
The following section set out the calculation of the General Fund and Housing 
Revenue Account balance for 2020-2021 based on the estimated impact of the risks 
facing the Council and the likelihood/percentage of the financial impact if it 
materialises. 
 

Page 105

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 5



 

Page 13 

Risk Based Assessment of the Level of General Fund Balance 
 
 
 

Specific Areas

Estimated 

Exposure

£

Likelihood 

Percentage

Balance 

Required

£

Risk Area

Changes since the 

budget was set

Staff pay 7,358,350              1% 73,583.50              

Contractual inflation 3,862,780              1% 38,627.80              

Utility inflation 634,690                 1% 6,346.90                

Total             118,558.20 

Risk Area

Income from areas within 

the base budget where 

the Council raises fees 

and charges

Car parking pay and 

display ticket sales
                  549,170 10%                54,917.00 

Development and building 

control income
                  444,590 10%                44,459.00 

Land charges income                   147,000 10%                14,700.00 

Recycling credits 

(tonnage)
                  512,570 20%             102,514.00 

Recycling sale income                     35,000 20%                  7,000.00 

Indoor market rents                   219,090 5%                10,954.50 

Leisure income                   258,970 10%                25,897.00 

Commercial property 

income
               1,453,090 5%                72,654.50 

Total             333,096.00 

Comments including any mitigation factors

Potential risk that things change since the budget estimates 

were made and the estimates are then under budgeted for.

Calculated Risk

Comments including any mitigation factors

Potential risk that the budgeted level of income from 

activities where the Council is charging for services will not 

be achieved.  This is anticipated largely to be as a result of a 

downturn in the economy, but could also be as a result of 

poor weather or new competition.  All fees and charges 

income is reviewed as part of the monthly/quarterly budget 

monitoring process.  All budgets are set based on previous 

experience and to reflect any new requirements.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 106

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 5



 

Page 14 

 

Specific Areas

Estimated 

Exposure

£

Likelihood 

Percentage

Balance 

Required

£

Risk Area

Demand led budgets

Housing benefit maximum 

risk based on not meeting 

minimum threshold for 

Local Authority errors

74,572                    75% 55,929.00              

Total                55,929.00 

Risk Area

Estimated balances 

required for any over 

spend or under recovery 

of expenditure and 

income

Gross income 38,497,920            1.5% 577,468.80            

Gross spend 38,149,500            1.5% 572,242.50            

Total          1,149,711.30 

Risk Area

Other risks

Service savings to be 

realised in 2020-2021
112,520                 50% 56,260.00              

Borrowing costs 1,000,000              4% 40,000.00              

Safety net for business 

rates
234,711                 50% 117,355.50            

Total             213,615.50 

Calculated Risk

Comments including any mitigation factors

Potential risk that savings will not be realised, that contract 

renewals require additional funding, that under-borrowing for 

cashflow purposes cannot be maintained and that Business 

Rates drop below the Safety Net.

Comments including any mitigation factors

Potential risk that spending on parts of the budget where the 

Council has a legal duty to provide the service increases 

significantly.  Individual budgets are reviewed as part of the 

budget monitoring process.

Comments including any mitigation factors

This calculation is based on the Council’s net revenue 

budget and services to cushion the impact of uneven cash 

flows.

 
 
 

£
1,870,910.00         

1,900,000.00         

2,300,000.00         General Fund balance held for 2020-2021

Summary
Calculated level of balance for General Fund based on risk

Minimum level of General Fund balance

 
 

Page 107

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 5



 

Page 15 

Risk Based Assessment of the Level of Housing Revenue Balance 
 
 

Specific Areas

Estimated 

Exposure

£

Likelihood 

Percentage

Balance 

Required

£

Risk Area

Changes since the 

budget was set

Staff pay 1,516,760              1% 15,167.60              

Contractual inflation 3,248,830              1% 32,488.30              

Utility inflation 36,100                    1% 361.00                    

Total                48,016.90 

Risk Area

Income from areas within 

the base budget where 

the Council charges rent, 

and raises fees and 

charges

Dwelling rents 9,713,950              2% 194,279.00            

Other rents 340,870                 5% 17,043.50              

Water rates 698,310                 5% 34,915.50              

Other income 354,710                 5% 17,735.50              

Total             263,973.50 

Risk Area

Demand led budgets

Responsive maintenance 3,189,150              5% 159,457.50            

Total             159,457.50 

Calculated Risk

Comments including any mitigation factors

Potential risk that things change since the budget estimates 

were made and the estimates are then under budgeted for.

Comments including any mitigation factors

Potential risk that the budgeted level of income from dwelling 

and other rents will not be achieved.  Risk that income from 

activities where the Housing Revenue Account is charging 

for services will not be achieved.  This is anticipated largely 

to be as a result of a downturn in the economy, but could also 

be as a result of a change in arrangements, new competition; 

changes in demand.  All income is reviewed as part of the 

monthly/quarterly budget monitoring process.  Rents are set 

by Council and estimated on previous experience of 

disposals and void loss.

Comments including any mitigation factors

Potential risk that spending on parts of the budget where the 

Housing Revenue Account (and the Council as landlord) has 

a legal duty to provide the service increases significantly.  

Individual budgets are reviewed as part of the budget 

monitoring process.

 
 

Page 108

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 5



 

Page 16 

 

Specific Areas

Estimated 

Exposure

£

Likelihood 

Percentage

Balance 

Required

£

Risk Area

Estimated balances 

required for any over 

spend or under recovery 

of expenditure and 

income

Gross income 11,301,060            1.5% 169,515.90            

Gross spend 8,131,500              1.5% 121,972.50            

Total             291,488.40 

Risk Area

Other risks

System implementation 50,000                    25% 12,500.00              

Planned maintenance 2,031,000              5% 101,550.00            

Total             114,050.00 

Comments including any mitigation factors

This calculation is based on the Housing Revenue Account’s 

net revenue budget and services to cushion the impact of 

uneven cash flows.

Comments including any mitigation factors

Calculated Risk

Potential risk of system implementation delays and 

functionality issues; planned maintenance programme 

overruns and market influences.

 
 
 

£
876,986.30            

900,000.00            

1,000,000.00         

Summary
Calculated level of balance for HRA based on risk

Minimum level of Housing Revenue Account balance

Housing Revenue Account balance held for 2020-2021  
 
 
 
 

 

Page 109

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 5



This page is intentionally left blank



  Part One

COUNCIL

Date of Meeting: 27th February 2020

Reporting Officer:  Director of Resources    

(R)

Title: Setting the Council Tax for the year commencing 1st 
April 2020

Summary and Conclusions: 

The purpose of this report is to calculate and set the Council Tax for the year 
2020-2021. 

Recommendations: 

Members are recommended:

1. To note that the Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria and 
Cumbria County Council precepts are subject to approval on 19th 
February, 2020.  Should the figures be changed an update will be 
provided at the meeting; and

2. To approve the formal Council Tax resolutions as detailed in Section VII 
of the report.

Report

I.  Calculating and setting the Council Tax for 2020-2021

i.  Introduction

The calculation and setting of the Council Tax for the Borough area is closely 
prescribed by legislation.  This report sets out the individual components of 
the calculation and concludes with the formal resolution in accordance with 
the statutory requirements.

ii.  Budget 

At this meeting the Council is considering the approval of the 2020-2021 
General Fund revenue budget of £10,088,720; this includes £148,080 of 
Parish Council precepts.  The budget is the amount required to meet the 
years estimated expenditure net of any income raised in fees, charges or 
service specific grant funding.  The budget includes the following precepts 
issued by the Parish Councils for 2020-2021:

Page 111

Agenda Item 6



Precept £
Dalton with Newton Town Council 120,480
Askam and Ireleth Parish Council 23,710
Lindal and Marton Parish Council 3,890
Total parish precepts 148,080

The Council Tax Requirement for the Borough is £4,891,580 and is made up 
as follows:

Item £
General Fund revenue budget 9,940,640
Less general grants (5,158,090)
Less the Collection Fund surplus (39,050)
Council Tax Requirement excluding parish precepts 4,743,500
Plus the parish precepts 148,080
The Council Tax Requirement 4,891,580

The legislation requires the Council’s revenue budget to be grossed up to 
show the estimated total expenditure and income for 2020-2021:

Item £
Total gross expenditure 55,874,340
Total gross income (50,982,760)
The Council Tax Requirement 4,891,580

iii.  Council Tax Base

The following Council Tax Bases for the Borough and the parished areas 
have been set for 2020-2021 as notified to the Executive Committee on 5th 
February 2020:

Whole Area 19,730.84
Dalton with Newton 2,359.55
Askam and Ireleth 1,107.45
Lindal and Marton 259.64

II.  Calculation of the Basic Council Tax for the Borough Council

The Council’s Basic Amount of Council Tax for Band D dwellings is calculated 
as follows:

The Council Tax Requirement excluding parishes £4,891,580
Divided by the Council Tax Base for the Whole Area 19,730.84
Gives the Basic Amount of Council Tax £247.92

This Band D rate of Council Tax is, in effect, an average across the parished 
and unparished areas of the Borough.  The statutory calculation then arrives 

Page 112

Agenda Item 6



at the Basic Amounts of Council Tax (for Band D dwellings) for the individual 
areas as follows:

Area Basic Amount
Barrow (unparished) £240.41
Dalton with Newton Parish £291.47
Askam and Ireleth Parish £261.82
Lindal and Marton Parish £255.38

Table 1 in Section VII.4 shows the tax amounts for each band and parish in 
the Council’s area.

III.  Cumbria County Council and the Police and Crime Commissioner for 
Cumbria precepts and amounts of Council Tax

Cumbria County Council set its budget for 2020-2021 resulting in a precept of 
£28,423,459.  The Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria set its budget 
with a precept of £5,240,314.  See Table 2 in Section VII.5 for the banded 
amounts of Council Tax.

IV.  Setting the Council Tax

The calculated Borough, Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria and 
Cumbria County Council elements are added to calculate the composite 
Council Tax.  The Council Tax for each category of dwellings is shown in 
Table 3 in Section VII.6.  After setting the Council Tax, the Council is required 
to advertise the amounts within 21 days in at least one local newspaper.

V.  Schedule of precept instalments

The precepts issued by Cumbria County Council and the Police and Crime 
Commissioner for Cumbria are payable in equal monthly instalments on dates 
to be agreed with the two authorities.  The Borough Council’s demand will be 
paid to the General Fund by instalments on the same dates.  The three parish 
precepts will be paid over in full on the April precept payment date.

VI.  Instalment dates

Council Tax and NNDR bills are payable in ten instalments.  The payment 
dates, which will maximise cash flow, are as follows; these may have to be 
adjusted in the event of any delay in issuing bills:

Instalment Date Instalment Date
1 1st April 2020 6 1st September 2020
2 1st May 2020 7 1st October 2020
3 1st June 2020 8 1st November 2020
4 1st July 2020 9 1st December 2020
5 1st August 2020 10 1st January 2021

Page 113

Agenda Item 6



VII.  Resolutions

Members are recommended to adopt the following resolutions:

1.  It be noted that on 5th February, 2020, the Council calculated the Council 
Tax Base for the year 2020-2021 in accordance with Regulations made 
under Section 33(5) of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, as 
amended (the Act):

a. for the whole Borough area as 19,730.84 in accordance with 
Regulation 3 of the Local Authorities (Calculation of Council Tax 
Base) Regulation 1992, as its Council Tax Base for the year;

b. for dwellings in those parts of the Borough area to which a Parish 
Precept relates; being the amounts calculated by the Council, in 
accordance with Regulation, as the amounts of its Council Tax Base 
for the year for dwellings in those parts of its area to which one or 
more special items relate:

Dalton with Newton 2,359.55
Askam and Ireleth 1,107.45
Lindal and Marton 259.64

2. That the Council Tax Requirement for the Council’s own purposes for 
2020-2021 (excluding Parish Precepts) is £4,743,500.

3. That the following amounts be calculated for the year 2020-2021 in 
accordance with Sections 31 to 36 of the Local Government and 
Finance Act 1992:

a. £55,874,340 being the aggregate of the amounts, which the Council 
estimates for the items, set out in Section 31A (2) of the Act taking 
into account all precepts issued to it by Parish Councils.

b. £50,982,760 being the aggregate of the amounts, which the Council 
estimates for the items, set out in Section 31A (3) of the Act;

c. £4,891,580 being the amount, by which the aggregate at 3(a) above 
exceeds the aggregate at 3(b) above, calculated by the Council in 
accordance with Section 31A (4) of the Act, as its Council Tax  
requirement for the year;

d. £247.92 being the amount at 3(c) above, all divided by the item at 
1(a) above, calculated by the Council, in accordance with Section 
31B of the Act, as the Basic Amount of its Council Tax for the year 
(including Parish Council precepts);

e. £148,080 being the aggregate amount of all special items (Parish 
Council precepts) referred to in Section 34(1) of the Act;

Page 114

Agenda Item 6



f. £240.41 being the Basic Amount of its Council Tax for the year for 
dwellings in those parts of its area to which no Parish precept 
relates as set out in Section 52ZX of the Act.

4.    Council Tax for parts of the Council’s Area:

Band Ratio Barrow Dalton with 
Newton

Askam and 
Ireleth

Lindal and 
Marton

A 6/9 £160.27 £194.31 £174.54 £170.25
B 7/9 £186.99 £226.70 £203.64 £198.63
C 8/9 £213.70 £259.09 £232.73 £227.01
D 9/9 £240.41 £291.47 £261.82 £255.38
E 11/9 £293.83 £356.24 £320.00 £312.13
F 13/9 £347.26 £421.01 £378.19 £368.88
G 15/9 £400.68 £485.78 £436.36 £425.63
H 18/9 £480.82 £582.94 £523.64 £510.76

5.   That it be noted that for the year 2020-2021, Cumbria County Council and 
the Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria have issued precepts to 
the Council in accordance with Section 40 of the Local Government 
Finance Act 1992 for each of the categories of dwellings as follows:

Band Cumbria County 
Council

Police & Crime 
Commissioner for 

Cumbria
A £960.37 £177.06
B £1,120.44 £206.57
C £1,280.49 £236.08
D £1,440.56 £265.59
E £1,760.68 £324.61
F £2,080.81 £383.63
G £2,400.93 £442.65
H £2,881.12 £531.18

6.   That the Council, in accordance with Sections 30 and 36 of the Local 
Government Finance Act 1992, hereby sets the aggregate amounts of 
Council Tax for the year 2020-2021 for each of the categories of 
dwellings:

Page 115

Agenda Item 6



Band Barrow Dalton with 
Newton

Askam and 
Ireleth

Lindal and 
Marton

A £1,297.70 £1,331.74 £1,311.97 £1,307.68
B £1,514.00 £1,553.71 £1,530.65 £1,525.64
C £1,730.27 £1,775.66 £1,749.30 £1,743.58
D £1,946.56 £1,997.62 £1,967.97 £1,961.53
E £2,379.12 £2,441.53 £2,405.29 £2,397.42
F £2,811.70 £2,885.45 £2,842.63 £2,833.32
G £3,244.26 £3,329.36 £3,279.94 £3,269.21
H £3,893.12 £3,995.24 £3,935.94 £3,923.06

7. Determine that, in accordance with the principles approved under 
Section 52ZB of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, the Council’s 
Basic Amount of Council Tax for 2020-2021 of £240.41 compared to 
£235.41 for the previous year is not excessive.

Page 116

Agenda Item 6


	Agenda
	2 MINUTES.
	5 TO RECEIVE A REPORT FROM THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE AND CONSIDER RECOMMENDATIONS CONTAINED THEREIN.
	Five-Year Estate-Based Asset Management Plans 2020-2025
	Housing Revenue Account 2020-2021
	HRA Budget Proposals Appendix
	Budget Proposals 24012020
	Budget Proposals Appendices
	Appendix 1 Budget Strategy
	Appendix 2 GF Subjective
	Appendix 3 GF Objective
	Appendix 4 MTFP Variance
	Appendix 5 BBC pay policy statement 20 21
	Appendix 6 EARM
	Appendix 7 2020 Capital Strategy
	Appendix 8 2020 Treasury Strategy
	Appendix 9 2020 Medium Term Financial Plan
	Appendix 10 2020 Reserves and Balances Policy


	6 SETTING THE COUNCIL TAX FOR THE YEAR COMMENCING 1ST APRIL, 2020.

